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Corporate Profile




Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in October 2010 under stock code 1700. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) engage in the operation
and management of department stores as well as
supermarkets in PRC with the following characterize:

The Group is a geographically focused and
dual-format retail chain operator in the Greater Yangtze
River Delta. The business on department store and
supermarket benefits each other complementary. This
dual-format retail business creates “one-stop” shopping
experience for the customers together with caters for a
diversity of client-tail in order to well serve their needs
and preferences from daily necessities to valuable
goods and accessories. Department store and city
centre supermarkets of the Group are in the distance
close to each other, either in adjacent sites or the same
building. It forms a retail hub that offers consumers a
more convenient, comfortable shopping environment
and experience. This retail business model generates
diversified revenue sources while lowering the operational
risks, creating synergies between department store and
supermarket businesses and enjoying greater economic of
sales.

The prime locations of the stores occupied are absolute
advantage of the success of the Group’s retail business.
All of the department stores and city centre supermarkets
are located in prime retail space and shopping districts
of the cities with high population density. The community
centre supermarkets are located in encircling communities
with dense population and convenient logistics. The
Group obtains a maximum exposure and direct access to
customers’ attention.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operates and
manages 56 stores, included 18 department stores
and comprehensive lifestyle shopping malls and 38
supermarkets, in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province
and Zhenjiang Province with a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,246,000 square meters. The Group’s
department stores and comprehensive lifestyle shopping
malls and supermarkets are sited in self-owned properties
reached 88.3% and 38.1% of the total gross floor areas
respectively.

CORPORATE PROFILE

RE BN

i FEEZERAR AR ([RRF]) 1R2010%
10AEREMARZAARAR LM - ki
HIE1700 - ARFNREWMB AR ([REE])
RABEGERERAEENRBN - XHAT
GESE K

AEBRAZEI=ZAMbE/SELHNER
ATEEHELH - RMANBERBMER
HEEK - ERATEXHESRMANETF A
EI-UA B YRER D8R EZERN
EP - YNHBARmESE®mMEMMNE
KRIRE - AEBEHE E 5 MBSO
JERPIREE - LR E - EREKE—
BF -AUMEREET L EHSBETR
HEMSBFENEVRERBEDER - X
SENTEXEHEAHESZ RIHNRARR
MRAREETRENRR EFAEEHR
BHEBEKE I REANE BEZHORER

EHEENESMBER AR RETE XK
DHEHES - AEEMENBEEEKHT
FLBMHNRBEMEESC T LRBEY
MWE ALRTHTANEYER AOTE
BeoHRFLEBTURAATE  WRERE
FY AL 8 AL o

#2015F12A31H » AEERIE#HE - ©&
EMTE KL EeEERIEAESE2AEE
EEY L 18HE B TIsH R EEME
12468 K - AEEBEEXN A EERY
PLRETEEMELREEAET LS
7l £88.3%7138.1% °

f% 47 G102 1HOd3H TVNNNY E ST ESEEETrEE  A3LINM SONIATOH TVNOILYNYILNI ANV IONIHAS



CORPORATE PROFILE
AT

RETAIL NETWORK

T By e drg: AILINM SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILNI ANV IONIHAS

=}

[

f* 47 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

ZERG
Commencement
Gross Floor” date of
Areas operation Property ownership
EEEmE B¥HE YEmAER
(sg. m.)
(A K)
Department Store or BERBYH L
Shopping Mall
Jiangsu Province TR E
Yixing Springland H 28,579 12/1994  Primarily owned = Z 8 H
Liyang Yaohan EC VAN ER 27,528 09/2003  Primarily owned =2 B4
Danyang Yaohan ks A 35,124 09/2004  Owned BB
Yixing (Hexin Branch) ERERIEES:) 30,251 11/2004  Owned S
Changshu Springland B 26,625 12/2004  Lease A
Jiangyin Springland LR EE M 37,930 09/2005  Owned BA
Wuxi Yaohan* VAN 76,300 07/2006  Owned BE
Nantong Yaohan* DAV RS 58,522 11/2009  Owned BA
Zhenijiang Yaohan BT \E 85,767 01/2010  Owned BB
Changzhou Yaohan A ANERS 31,662 04/2011  Lease A
Jintan Yaohan E/\AEH 24,899 12/2011  Owned BE
Zhenjiang Commercial Building* #8717 % 8" 44,839 12/2011  Owned BA
Yangzhou Wanjiafu BMNERE 24,798 12/2012  Owned BA
Nanjing Yaohan* R\ E 23,249 04/2013  Lease A
Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle HENEHEFEES
Shopping Mall 135,555 11/2015  Owned ks
Gaochun Yaohan SREFANERCS 39,258 01/2016  Managed g
Anhui Province ZHE
Ma’ anshan Yaohan BB EH 36,259 11/2009  Owned BE
Xuancheng Yaohan =R WAV ER S 34,952 12/2012  Owned BE
Zhejiang Province MTE
Changxing Yaohan RE)N\BEHF 36,346 08/2012  Owned k=)
Jiaxing Yaohan Lifestyle =EN\BHEEES
Shopping Mall 118,793 01/2016  Owned =S
Suppermarket S EIEFET No. of stores
by region EHEE
Changzhou & Liyang N R 48,947 4
Jiangyin TRe 76,936 8
Zhenjiang & Danyang L RS 41,556 5
Yixing =iz 79,842 7
Wuxi 3 63,034 9
Others EHAh 62,594 5

Commencement date includes date of acquisition of the company
FEBBEQARIZKER

Not inchuded gross floor areas for car parks and other supporting functions
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Chairman’s; Statement




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During 2015, the economy of mainland China has
undergone ongoing adjustments and challenges and the
Group’s business environment has also suffered as a
result.

The world’s major economies remain in downturn, thus
weakening the overall demand. However, the US economy
is reviving and the strong US dollar, following the signalled
first interest rate rise at the end of 2015, continues to
get stronger. The economy of mainland China is sluggish
and the growth in the year further slowed down to 6.9%,
which is the first time it has been below 7% since 1990.
This indicates that the economic growth lacks momentum.
Structural adjustments and the effect of economic
incentive policies are far from expectation. The declining
economy and change of consumption environment
undermines residents’ consumption needs, so the
domestic consumption growth is lower than anticipated.
Under such a trend, there is no significant increase in retail
market of mainland China and the traditional retail industry
is still facing challenges in terms of costs and profits.

Regardless of the challenging business environment, the
Group managed to achieve the business target set at the
beginning of 2015. The total sales proceeds of the Group
slightly down by 3.2% to RMB10,696 million as compared
with 2014. The profit for the year decreased by 24.1% to
approximately RMB490 million as compared with 2014
and the basic earnings per share was RMB20 cents. In
light of the financial performance of the Group, the Board
proposes a final dividend of HK$7 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Strategies

Looking back on 2015, improved life quality, cultural
features, personal character and unique experience have
become new prerequisites of consumption. Considering
these demands, the Group kept leveraging upon its ability
in professional planning, technological development,
service experiences and channel consolidation to promote
and highlight the brand of its own.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHRES

As to department stores, we spared no effort to adopt
smart and new technologies by having intelligent
upgrading on payment methods, information matching,
mobile internet, foot traffic monitoring and parking
systems, thereby making shopping a more convenient
task. In each store, we proactively promoted the
development of essential elements of shopping mall.
Accordingly, we presented the mode of one-stop stores
for selected categories and brands as well as created a
fresh shopping experience for customers.

The Group also made adjustments and upgrades in
respect of brands for its stores. We upgraded all our
brand lineups and combinations, strengthened the lineup
of bestselling brands together with expanded competitive
brands and further reduced the overlap with market
competitors in order to increase loyalty of our customers.

In respect of supermarkets, the formation of new
commercial models and deepening of supply chains were
key supporting factors to value the enhancement of our
supermarket business and its efficiency. The Group paid
more attention to the residents and their neighbourhoods
when considering product category identification,
consumption frequency, community service quality and
customer interaction. We believe, with the attention
and support to community commercial modules made
during the establishing of smart cities, this will become
one of the major sources of business growth of our
supermarket business. In the deepening of supply chains,
we further expanded the direct procurement channels
from fresh food bases together with increased the
source procurement of first-tier and second-tier product
categories. In addition, we emphasized on promoting in-
depth cooperation with bases of featured agricultural
products, thus achieving the goal of making standardized
direct source procurement viable.

Meanwhile, the Group put more effort on importing high
quality products. This is complementary to the present
operational system and we also believe sales of those
products will deliver promising results with improved
operating efficiency in terms of tariffs, market supply,
logistics and payment methods.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Moreover, the Group realized a steady expansion of its
store network despite the adverse market condition.
Supported by the asset light model, the Group maintained
and increased our impact in the region. As of the report
date, we opened three comprehensive lifestyle shopping
malls, upgraded one department store, opened nine new
supermarkets and entered into a light asset arrangement
contract for a shopping mall. These projects reinforced
the Group’s strategy of having multiple stores in the same
city and securing our leading position in the cities that and
likely to have a booming retail market in the future.

Prospects

The growth of the aggregate retail amount of social
consumer products in 2015 has slowed down compared
with 2014. However, in light of the anticipation in the
market of a declining economy, we can hardly be
optimistic about the growth of sales in consumer products
in 2016. Competition within the retail industry is fierce
and finding profit is still difficult. Divisions, merges and
acquisitions of within the industry are expected as well
as the centralization of physical retail is also inevitable.
This is a development progress in which we have to
explore changes in innovation, break through impediments
and pursue positive growth amid the unfavourable
environment.

In 2016, professionalization, refinement, differentiation
along with expedience will be the response to new
consumption demands and this is also Springland’s
direction of constant innovation in the future. Springland
will constantly enhance its ability to identify product
quality, consolidate product resources, integrate
businesses under different market conditions as well as
commercial sectors and serve its customers. We will take
advantage of the new internet technologies to promote
our brand and move forward.

| hereby sincerely give thanks to the shareholders,
employees, business partners and customers of the Group

for their continuous support.

Chen Jiangiang
Chairman

16 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

China’s economic growth edged down to 6.9% in 2015
as trade and consumer spending weakened to its lowest
level in the past 25 years. The Chinese leadership has
promised structural reforms to boost long-term growth
and economic policy in 2016 will focus on supply-side
reform, while China’s authorities will also rely on demand-
side stimulus to cushion the current slowdown.

Affected by the decelerating macroeconomic growth
in China, the traditional retail industry is slowing down.
Statistic from the Chinese Commercial Information
Center showed that the sale proceeds of national top
100 retailers the first time showed negative growth in
2015 year-on-year since 2012. Meanwhile, the emerging
e-commerce has been reshaping the consumption habit
of the Chinese consumers, traditional retailers encounter
encroachment of market from e-commerce will continue.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The persisting complicated financial situation of China and
challenging the economic development remained. The
Group recorded a dropped in the total sales proceeds of
3.2% to RMB10,696 million due to the weak consumer
sentiment and intensifying competition. Profit from
operations decreased by 19.8% to RMB788 million.

Strategic transformation: modification of department
store and introduction of new technology

It is believed that Chinese reform measures and
development policies will pave the way for sustainable
economic development in the long term. In these
challenging circumstances, the Group is deploying
several key transformation strategies that strengthen the
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNR DT

In 2015, the Group accelerated its strategic transformation
and modification from traditional department store to
comprehensive lifestyle shopping mall with experiential
consumption, by constantly reviewing as well as
optimizing the merchandise mix to further enhance its
competitiveness together with boost sales and profit
growth.

The Group is embracing digital integration to enrich our
business operations. Free WiFi and mobile payment
were launched in all our stores. Most of the marketing
and interaction with customers are now done through
social media platforms to foster closer ties and increase
customer loyalty. Also, the Group continues to develop
its social customer relationship management and build
its own “big data” database and improve on its business
intelligence system.

Network expansion

In February 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 50%
equity interest of Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial Center
Co., Ltd GE\IBHEEMBERAR]), for a consideration
of RMB176.3 million and it became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. This subsidiary operates a
department store, Zhenjiang Commercial Building (381 &
%38), in Zhenjiang City, Jiangsu Province. The store, with
a total gross floor area of approximately 45,000 square
meters, was closed down for refurbishment to increase
experiential consumption element for customers during the
year and it was re-opened in November 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Group acquired
40.48% equity interest in Nantong Yaohan Commerce &
Trade Joint Stock Company Limited (“Nantong Yaohan
Commerce & Trade”) (BB N\BEHHERGBERAT), for a
consideration of RMB368.5 million. After the acquisition,
the Group held 98.58% equity interest of Nantong Yaohan
Commerce & Trade. Nantong Yaohan Commerce &
Trade holds and operates Nantong Yaohan department
store, which has a gross floor area of approximately
58,000 square meters in Nantong City, Jiangsu Province.
The acquisition will better implement the Company’s
management and operation strategies. In 2016, the store
will be transformed into a comprehensive lifestyle mall by
strengthening its catering and entertainment services to
increase experiential consumption.

In November 2015, Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping
Mall, the Group’s first comprehensive lifestyle shopping
mall project, commenced operation. The shopping mall is
located at the Dongjiu (3717 ) business district in Yixing
with a total gross floor area of approximately 210,000
square meters. It has integrated fashion shopping,
catering, entertainment, leisure and culture activities in
one, bringing an innovative lifestyle shopping together
with entertainment experience to customers. The area for
comprehensive lifestyle functions and amenities accounted
for over 50% of the total operating area of Yixing Yaohan
Lifestyle Shopping Mall. The diversified merchandise
and amenities offers effectively attracted foot traffic and
brought in young as well as fashionable customers.

In January 2016, the Group introduced the second
comprehensive lifestyle shopping mall in Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province. Jiaxing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping
Mall is located at the core business areas in Jiaxing
with a gross floor area of approximately 166,000 square
meters. total Jiaxing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall has
integrated fashion shopping, catering, entertainment,
leisure, culture activities and has introduced various
features and fashionable brands along with a
comprehensive range of business forms in Jiaxing to
quickly become the landmark in the city.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNR DT

Showing remarkable management ability, the Group
further expanded its network by providing management
services to property owners. During the year, the Group
entered into an operation management contract in
respect of Gaochun store at Nanjing. Gaochun Yaohan
Department Store, which opened in January 2016, has
introduced various brands, catering, recreation and
entertainment to provide a one-stop shopping mall.

During the year, 6 supermarkets were opened in
Wuxi cities, Jiangsu Province and they are located
along existing logistic routes. The opening of the new
supermarkets enhanced the Group “1+N” expansion
strategy for the supermarket business, improved logistic
efficiency and had an influence on the market share in the
region.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 18
department stores and comprehensive lifestyle shopping
malls, with a total operational floor area of 594,000 square
meters (2014: 530,000 square meters), representing
increase of 12.0% from 31 December 2014. The Group
also operated 38 supermarkets, with a total operational
floor area of 212,000 square meters (2014: 181,000
square meters), representing increase of 17.7% from
2014.

Based on the sites secured by the Group for its new store
expansion, it is anticipated that these stores will increase
the gross floor area of the Group’s chain stores by over
570,000 square meters in the next five years. Furthermore,
the Group will continue to focus on high-quality premises
that are suitable for the comprehensive lifestyle-one-stop
shopping concept and will continue to seek opportunities
of investment, co-operation, merger and acquisition that
can fulfil the Group’s development, investment strategies
and objectives, hence laying a solid foundation for the
Group’s business expansion.

HRAEESMNERE N AEERAL
XTI RUHEERKE-—FTEBREL - FA -
AEEFUE AR ZEMEEERAR 5
FSAHE2016F1 A% - EESERME
BE  REIRER —BH—WmXBOFL -

FA - AKERIHEEGTHFET6HEUR
BAEY RS AREERT o #E R F R 0%
TAREBEBETEB1+N] 2 S M5B
WA — F R RAE KRN ET R
27 -

HE2015%12A31H @ AEBFKE18HEE
NEBEAFBEDH L  BELEHEIES.48F
7oK (20144 : 538 F HK) @ 82014412
AB1HER12.0% - KEE K L38H B4
EETE21.28F 7K (20144F - 181875
K)o B2014F R B N17.7% »

CEBRMCHEENZEFEARER K%
B 1 R R L6 1D AL AR I IR BT B T 77
KERZEEME - WO REBEBFHERT -
REXRLENELILEAENELRED
BENAAEEERRBREAMBERNIR
BERfFERFRBERE  /RAKENEXBH
RIBHARHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Total sales proceeds (“TSP”)' continued to be under
pressure in the challenging market environment, weak
consumer sentiment and intensifying competition. The
Group’s TSP were RMB10,696 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. Profit for the year was RMB490
million, as compared with RMB646 million last year. The
Directors of the Company recommended the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of
HK$7 cents per share (2014: HK$9 cents per share).

Total sales proceeds (“TSP")’ HEMBHERE

Department store BEE

Suypermarket B
Revenue WA
Operating profit? MR
Profit for the year FERF

Earnings per share (RMB: cents)

Calculated in term of TSP:
Operating margin®

BROEHN(ARE : 2)

UHEFFEARAETE -

wREAIE

- department store -BE
- supermarket —-#i
Net profit margin* F R e

EEENWNR DT

B iEELE

TERERE HEBEREBREEFMEE
BUHEMSREBRBFEXE - HE2015F
12A31ALEFE  SEMNEEMSHERE
BARK10,606E 8L - FRaM/sARE
490EE T MEFEHREHRNAREGI6EHE
JL e AR RIEFEZLEZ2015F12H31H
IEFEIRS TR KRB BB T7IL (20144 -
FRREEAL) -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2015 2014 Charge
“E-ff —T-lE =)
(RMB million)
(AR¥%BETR)

10,696 11,049 -3.2%
7,907 8262 -4.3%
2,789 2,787 -
4,168 4,276 -2.5%

788 983 -19.8%

490 646 -24.1%

20 26 -23.1%
8.6% 10.3%
4.0% 4.9%
4.6% 5.8%

1 Total sales proceeds (“TSP”) = revenue from direct sales + gross revenue from concessionaire sales + rental income
HEMSFIRAE -ERHENRA + FHELHEMGHIREE + He KA
2 Operating profit = operating profit of department store + operating profit of supermarket
KERN=AELE RN + BHE A
3 Operating margin = operating profit/TSP
MR E R TS RB A
4 Net profit margin = profit for the year/TSP

BRI = ERERF A

TBHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmR D

Revenue & TSP WAFEEFRBRIBHAE
Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014
BE0155 128 ALEE HENUE2RNBLLER
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
business business Total business business Total
BEEE  RBoER &t BEER  EnER At
(RMB million)
(A\REEET)
Revenue WA
Direct sales EREE 309 2,446 2,755 312 2478 2,790
Commission income from HEES 1S
concessionaire sales BElA 1,234 44 1,278 1319 4 1,360
Rental income BelA 81 53 134 7 48 120
Provision of food and beverage services RUEHRE - 1 1 - 6 6
Total At 1,624 2,544 4,168 1703 2,573 4,076
TSP HEfRRELE
Direct sales ERBE 309 2,446 2,755 312 2478 2,790
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales FHEEHEMGIE 1517 290 7,807 7,878 261 8,139
Rental income BelA 81 53 134 7 48 120
Total At 7,907 2,789 10,696 8,262 2,787 11,049
Same store sales change AEHERL -5.1% -4.1% -1.8% 0.2%




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Department store business:

TSP from the department store business reduced to
RMB7,907 million (2014: RMB8,262 million) and same
store sales dropped by approximately 5.1%. Direct
sales as a percentage of TSP from the department store
business was 3.9% (2014: 3.8%) while gross revenue of
concessionaire sales as a percentage of TSP from the
department store business was 95.1% (2014: 95.3%) in
the year ended 31 December 2015.

TSP by top five largest stores

Due to the increase in TSP contributions from younger
stores and keen market competition, the top five largest
stores aggregate contribution to TSP decreased from
59.5% of last year to 58.3% of 2015.

Top 5 largest department stores by TSP:

EEENWNR DT

BEX%:
BEXERHENMSRELERLEARE
7,907H BT (2014F : A R¥#8,262H0 &
JT) - RIE#EER 5.1% < 201512 A31H
EFERN BERHEHEEEBHEMBN
THAAFH M E B 53.9% (20144 : 3.8%) ' #F
TEAHEH O EEBHEEMBSRELEN
BN A895.1% (20144 - 95.3%) -

FI I A5 21 35 & B 3 71 R 48 85 49 & Bt

B 70 AR S B A I B BR800 K T 5 R
FORE OABEESBEXBHEEM
BREREN R BERMR EFN59.5%% =
2015%F #958.3% °

AIAABAEEHEMSRIAEE

2015 2014

—E-FE —ET—mF
TSP TSP TSP TSP
$SEFB  Contribution SHEMS Contribution
MIBHEE HEMS NIBHEE HE S
(RMB million) MIEHAE  (RMB million) IR ABRE
(AR®EERT) BERE (ARBBEET) BRIE
Wuxi Yaohan i3 VAN ERC 1,351 17.1% 1,435 17.4%
Zhenjiang Yaohan ST \E 1,108 14.0% 1,210 14.6%
Jiangyin Springland pNicE ) 916 11.6% 961 11.6%
Yixing Springland B 656 8.3% 708 8.6%
Nantong Yaohan EREVANER:= 576 7.3% 602 7.3%
Others Hh 3,300 41.7% 3,346 40.5%
7,907 100% 8,262 100%

£ GL0C LHOJ3d IVNNNY E B7 B stz Q3 LNM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS



£ GL0C LHOJ3d TVNNNY E (275 B gt sg@ s Q3 LINM SONIATOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIHAS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmR D

TSP by merchandise categories

In 2015, fashion and apparel accounted for approximately
38.7% (2014: 39.0%); merchandise related to cosmetics
accounted for approximately 5.7% (2014: 5.6%); watches,
gold and jewelry accounted for approximately 24.8%
(2014: 25.0%); footwear accounted for approximately
10.0% (2014: 10.6%) and the remaining categories
including athletic apparel and casual wear, children’s and
home furnishing, household and electronic appliances,
rental income and others accounted for the remaining
20.8% (2014: 19.8%) of TSP of the department stores
business. The proportion of sales proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories are presented
in the below charts.

Department Store - 2015

BE

Fashion and apparel

s 5 Iz PR 8

Watches, gold and jewelry
ER EHEHKERGH
- Cosmetics
bk &
Footwear

HiE

Others
[ |
Hit

[ ] 20.8%

10.0%

Commission rate from concessionaire sales and
comprehensive gross margin®

In 2015, the commission rate from concessionaire sales
was 16.4%, representing a drop of 0.3 percentage point
from 16.7% in 2014. The Comprehensive Gross Margin of
department store business was 21.1% which is same as
that of 2014.

B A B AT RS B AR B B 77
2015%F - R R &L HE NS NIAB T
%4 /538.7% (20144 : 39.0% ) : {L Ak Sk 49
5.7% (20144 : 5.6%) * Btk - ELHE M
#{h 4924.8% (20144 : 25.0% ) : EE (R 4T
10.0% (2014%F : 10.6%) : HepmmmER (&
FREBHRELABR EREKREAR R
EERETAM HEWRAREM)(ELNHTH
20.8% (20144 : 19.8%) ~ IEE mmiEE o
HENWEEEBHEEMSRELSENLANT
B AR o

Department Store — 2014
BE

19.8%

FAHEEHE MWD FRAEEENE

MR2015F  BERTELEHERES XA
16.4% » H12014516.7% 4 L T FR0.3ME A
D AEEBNEESENER21.1% @ H
2014F — 5 »

5 Comprehensive Gross Margin = (gross profit of direct sales + commission income from concessionaire sales + rental
income + other income (service fee collected from concessionaire and suppliers))/TSP.

HAEENEXAGEEMNGUHEMSHARENE - GAENEERERHEEN  HHELHERS KA - HEKRA

REMEA(EZREFFELHLEEAOREE) -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Supermarket business:

In 2015, TSP of the supermarket business reached
RMB2,789 million, which is similar to TSP in 2014 of
RMB2,787 million. It resulted from the net off of drop
in same store sales of 4.1% and sales contributed from
newly opened supermarkets.

TSP by top five largest stores

The aggregate contribution to TSP generated from the
supermarket business from the top five largest stores
decreased from approximately 37.6% in 2014 to 35.7% in
2015. The proceeds from supermarkets opened in 2014
and 2015 (proceeds not included in calculating the same
store sales change) accounted for 5.0% of TSP for the
supermarket business.

TSP by merchandise categories

Fresh food accounted for approximately 40.9%
(2014: 40.0%), dry foods accounted for approximately
30.1% (2014: 29.8%), non-food accounted for
approximately 24.8% (2014: 26.0%) and the remaining
categories including rental income and others accounted
for the remaining 4.2% (2014: 4.2%) of the TSP of the
supermarket business. The proportion of sales proceeds
of supermarket business from various merchandise
categories are presented in the below charts.

Supermarket - 2015

Fresh food B
RS
Dry food
ZERM

Non-food merchandise 24.8%

Y 409%
Others
Hih

EEEN WK D

2015%F MMEBHEEMBHREATEAR
W0 780H &L - EH2014F HEFTSRIELAEE
AR, 787TEE LIS - HERRAEHEET
P24 1% METFARBMIHE BN T RNVFREATE °

B K J 1 55 B BT 12 50 18 48 BE Y B Bt

A ARNEHBMEKBEEMSHRBERLED
2T E B R2014F 1937.6% /% £2015%F &Y
35.7% ° 20144 20155 157 & Ay B T &
BHESHEEMS RNEREEENME5.0% (5%
HEMBSREABEITERTER/EHES
&) o

HE G EEE R BREE S H

FHRMEEBMESHEEMSRNEAELY
40.9% (20144 : 40.0%)  EZEBERMEH
30.1% (20144 : 29.8% ) : JEB @ 18 & B
15 4924.8% (20144 : 26.0% ) : H &4 78 @
HA (REES WA REM) EETH4.2%
(20145 : 4.2%) - ERA M BES D (BT
EBIEEMSRBLEEOLAN TER -

Supermarket — 2014
i)

26.0%

40.0%

29.8%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNR DT

Direct sales margin and comprehensive gross margin
Revenue from direct sales in the supermarket business
decreased from RMB2,478 million in 2014 to RMB2,446
million in 2015, representing a drop of 1.3%. The direct
sales margin stayed at 12.6% (2014: 12.6%). The
Comprehensive Gross Margin maintained at 22.5%
(2014: 22.6%). The Group intended to maintain the
Comprehensive Gross Margin stable by increasing
investments in equipment and technology to expand the
contribution from fresh food and to enhance products
quality and reduce wastage.

BEBHEENEREEEFE

EBMEBNEZEERAB014FHARE
2,478B B LM L E2015F ) A R#E2 446 H
BT AL TH1.3% BHEHEENEINEL
12.6% (2014%F 1 12.6%) * &6 EFI KR
22.5% (20144 : 22.6%) ° & = #E i@ iB NE
BEMEMIEARBRANERRIEEEM
RARRME  BREBRE URESEWEDS
RAEEFENEE -

Expenses ZH
Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ened 31 December 2014
EEN5F12A%1ALEE EENUEI2ANB SR
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
business business  Headquarter Total % of TSP husiness business  Headquarter Total % of TSP
BEEE Enxk &3 &5t 11 AEER ELES) &3 a3t fhHE
(RMB million) fi&sE (RMB milion) FRE
(AR®EER) ELER DA (AR¥EET) BEAML
Staff costs SIRA 303 238 69 610 5.1% 2 233 m 562 5.3%
Depreciation and fEREE
amortisation 264 n 4 345 3.2% 258 n 4 338 3.0%
Rental expenses RERx 44 69 6 119 1.4% 7 66 5 98 09%
Other expenses EHFR 380 130 44 554 5.2% 30 125 4 526 47%
Total Aif 991 514 123 1,628 15.2% 917 495 127 1539 13.9%

Expenses consisted of staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses and other expenses.
Other expenses mainly include impairment of goodwill,
impairment of property, plant and equipment, utility
expenses, advertising and promotion expenses, |0ss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment, office
expenses, maintenance costs, travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses, property tax and government
surcharges as well as other miscellaneous expenses.

EREREINRA EREH HEMX
REMAX - L5 X B R EREERE
ME - BELEREREER KER
EEEBER WX HBEERRXRENRE
BE HAERX GENEMER  ZIK
B OXGHGE MER BFKMERN
HMRMAS



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2015, total expenses of the Group as a percentage
of TSP were 15.2% (2014: 13.9%) and total expenses
increased by 5.8% to RMB1,628 million from RMB1,539
million in 2014. The growth was primarily attributable to
the increase in the number of stores in accordance with
the expansion of store network, which resulting the rise in
staff costs, rental expenses, depreciation and amortization
and other operating expenses; impairment of property,
plant and equipment together with exchange losses due to
currency fluctuation.

Fee income from suppliers and operating profit

In 2015, fee income from suppliers increased to RMB534
million (2014: RMB528 million), fee income from suppliers
as a percentage of TSP increased to approximately
5.0% for 2015 from 4.8% for 2014. Fee income from
suppliers including promotion fees, management fees
paid by suppliers for participating in promotional activities,
reimbursing electricity charge and material, etc.

Operating profits for the Group (excluded impairment of
goodwill, share of loss of a joint venture, interest and
dividend income and unallocated gains, corporate and
other unallocated expenses and finance costs) decreased
to approximately RMB788 million in 2015 from RMB983
million for the same period in 2014, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 19.8%. Operating profits for the
department store business decreased from RMB847
million in 2014 to approximately RMB676 million in
2015, representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.2%.
The operation margin as a percentage of TSP for the
department store business was 8.6%, representing a
decline of 1.7 percentage point from 10.3% in 2014. For
the supermarket business, operating profits decreased
from RMB136 million in 2014 to approximately RMB112
million in 2015, representing a year-on-year decrease of
17.4%. The operating margin as a percentage of TSP
for the supermarket business was 4.0%, representing a
decline of 0.9 percentage point from 4.9% in 2014. The
drop in operating profits for the Group, department store
and supermarket businesses was mainly attributable to
cost incurred by new stores during their ramp up period
and higher operating costs contributed by them; and the
increasingly competitive landscape of the retail sector
which has led to drops in both sales and profit.

EEENWNR DT

R2015%F  AEEBHARNHEEMERE
HER A D A15.2% (20144F : 13.9%)
BRAEAR22014F AR 5305 & o N
5.8%E AREE1,628EETT o ZEMEZAHR
TEEBNBRERE TN HERS -
PrESESREBAEMESE MMM
E DE BEERXBEAEEBNIRKRE
O BB EUE F I8 KA NPT R ©

REHEFTNEMRARKE ZF

2015%F  REHEAMEMKAENEAR
B534H BT (20144 ARMS28FET) -
S ERMS IR A 2 L #H2014F 194.8%
HHINE2015F #15.0%  HEFM E MU A
ERER2 NS EHEEE T HEH
E TEHEEBULMEDAEEBEMTAEN
KE - MREESER -

AEBMEE RN (BREBREER 514
AETERE - FBERBEBWA - XD EK
HCARREMRSERA REERKA) H
2014F M A R #0838 & LR L £2015F 1)
ARB788EHETT  BF TF£10.8% A&

HE LG F H2014F M ARB84TAHE T
WL E2015F M ARKGT6EE L  HET
F%20.2% * HILHEFMSHIBELTENE D LT
AEEBELEREFEHN2014FH10.3% | %
1.7E A D EES.6% o M EKALLRF A
2014F M AR 1368 B LR L £2015F
ARBE112BET  IHFETE17.4% © &5 8
EMBREEENE DT BMERLEE
FI%4.0%  B12014%F 94.9%48 IL F# 1K 70.9
EEDE - AEBNLEERZN BEEBM
BHEBNKEE TN THREEHRMIELEE
BERVPMEFEANEARRR N EERAN
MEEXKEREZFME - SBHEE LT
Y T ERATEL -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

An analysis of the profit for the year was as follows:

Business unit EMEN
Department store ERS
Less: Ve
Impairment of goodwill R EER
Supermarket HBm
Net finance income FIEWAFE
Dividend, investment income BE -&RERA
and unallocated gains kAR5 B =

Corporate overheads and others T™¥&KE R Hf X

Share of loss of a joint venture D {h&¥ ¥ EE
Income tax expense FEHAX
Profit for the year FERF

Bt %% Bl B8
FERMNAFOAT :
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
B E20155 HE2014%F
12A31H 12H31H
LEFE WEFE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AEMEER) (AREBEBL)
676 847
- (25)
676 822
112 136
788 958
14 79
19 60
(123) (127)
(3) (49)
(205) (275)
490 646




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment of goodwill

The progress of extension and renovation of existing
property of Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce Co., Ltd.
did not meet management’s expectation, the Company
recognised an impairment of goodwill in 2014. The
company is engaged in operation of a department store,
Yangzhou Wanjiafu Commercial Building, in Yangzhou,
Jiangsu Province.

Net finance income

Net finance income comprised interest income from
surplus cash and structured deposit net interest expenses
on interest-bearing debts. The decrease in net finance
income mainly was the resulted of the drop in interest
income from surplus cash and structured deposit that was
more than the cut in interest expenses.

Dividend, investment income and unallocated gains

Dividend, investment income and unallocated gains
mainly comprised of dividend and investment income and
subsidy income. The amount of decrease is mainly due
to the Group receiving dividend income and recording a
gain on disposal of its investment in the shares of Wuxi
Commercial Building Dadongfang Co., Ltd (5% AE
AHR RN BRAF) totaling of RMB34.6 million in 2014.
The Group disposed all the investment in October 2014.

Share of loss of a joint venture

The Group shared a loss from Zhenjiang Baisheng
Commercial Center Co., Ltd. (E;IAEEMER AT, a
joint venture of the Company. On 28 February 2015, the
Group acquired additional 50% equity interest of the joint
venture and it became wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. The share of loss decreased to RMB3 million in
2015 from RMB49 million in 2014.

Income tax expenses

Result from the decrease in profit before tax, income tax
expenses for the current year dropped RMB70 million from
the previous year. The effective tax rate staged at 29.5%
and remained relatively stable as compared with that of
2014.

EEENWNR DT

EEREEE

R20145F - A MNEFEHNERRAAMIER
MUGEREMEREINEBEES A2 A
HEBANBMEREES  LARNIHSE
BMNEE—HMEABENERENEES -

FMEWAZREE
MEBWAFRERENRBHRE S NEBIETR
H A S AI RS B EBHEEKE - F8
WAFBETRIEARRENASEFEDR
EBUETTR D EEANBWAR D - BRIE
= 7 BRE A B ORI T ER o

RE - REWAR KRS EWE

BRE BRERARRDIERETIZEER
B RERAMBREA 2B ITKIER
HRANEEE2014FHEREBAMEEER
REEBHHEABEARTRNDAER AN
REWRAFTARKI4.6AETT - N20145F
107 AEBEHEZHKRE -

PEEENEEE

DIEEECEBEAAEBO(hE BN EE
T BEBRERARRAFAEIE - KR2015F2A
28H F AEBWIE LA E D EB T50%M R
ECHEHKNAAEENZENBRGT - D1HE
BH2014FHARE4I0EE TR E20155F
MARBIEETT -

FemEx

EBRBALEN TY  AFEAMERAHEE
FHETR70BE T - BRI E £29.5%
BI04 F L B RIFIETE ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmR D

ASSETS BASE

The major assets and net assets of the Group were as

follows:

Assets use in operation

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land premiums
Long-term prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents and

time deposits
Restricted cash
Structured deposits
Others assets

Total assets

Net assets

Net assets per share (Note)

Note:

LRETHNEE
WE - BE RERE
BN HES
RHIFAN A

RekReEEYM

EHER
XRERES
BTN
HtEE

BEMRE

BEFE

BRFEE (ML)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent/Number of issued
shares at the end of year

EEER

SENFEZEELENEEFEBRLAT

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

2015% 20144
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEERT) (ARKAERT)
8,199 6,449

1,681 872

76 615

9,956 7,936

799 1,986

238 227

- 115

1,249 1,338

12,242 11,602

5,218 5,197

RMB RMB

AR AR

2.08 2.03

HriF -

BREEEAEGERER FREBTROE -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
premium and long-term prepayments

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premium
and long term prepayments amounted to approximately
RMB9,956 million (2014: RMB7,936 million). Those assets
were held for long-term operation used by the Group.

Capital expenditure of the Group during 2015 amounted
to approximately RMB2,980 million (2014: RMB646
million). Capital expenditure consists of additions to
property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums
and other intangible assets including assets from the
acquisition of subsidiaries.

Capital commitments as of 31 December 2015 amounted
to RMB685 million (2014: RMB1,314 million), representing
mainly construction items which contracted but not
provided for of Jiaxing, Anging and Wuhu projects.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three months and five years
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits decreased
from RMB1,986 million as at 31 December 2014 to
RMB799 million as at 31 December 2015 mainly result
from cost of launching new stores, ongoing projects,
payments for the acquisition of a subsidiary and non-
controlling interests. The Group will focus on asset
light development model which reduce the amount of
surplus cash. In 2015, the decreased in cash and cash
equivalents was mainly due to payments of items of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium
of totaling RMB1,536 million and payments of acquisition
of a subsidiary and non-controlling interests of RMB477
million.

EEENWNR DT

ME BERRE BAEfiIEELREH
AR RE

WE BMERRE ENTiHEERESH
FERIBRAEN AR 056H & T (2014
F:ARB7036EETT) - FMlEETIAE
ERHEE  LiEREEFEH -

REBR2016FANEARFAZ N BARE
2,980H BT (201445 : ARBGI6EETT) °
EARTBREREVE  BELLE B
ThiEe REM BT EE (BIER A WEN
BARIMNEE) °

M20155F12A318 » AEBEWERKERA
R#685A & 7T (20145 - ARM1,3148 8
L) EBABRTARE  REMEBND
FEIARMEXREBEEE -

RERASEEY THER
RITFFRREES ARITHERNERIOZBA
E-EHFEFA=—EAZRAFHRTEF &
FAEENNBRESHTRME  LIREEH
E R RBERER B - RITEBRT ARG
BRT-RERBESFEY  THREFERNOK
EEEEQAFEBE -

ReRkBFeEEY  THEREEH20145F
12HA31H M AR #1,0868 & JT R 4 22015
FI2A3THMAREKIOEE L - T2HRN
REBESCARTHAREHREEEBEENK
A WHEH B AT RIFERERTE - A&
BARKAERELEEERNHE  ROFHE
BECRENTR - R2015F - Be MBS
BYRLETEHRINEEDE  BELR
HMEA L HEENE EARKE1,5368 8
TSN B A R A EE R ETNAR
WATTE & T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmR D

Restricted cash

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations issued by
the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group was required to deposit bank balances
in the Group’s designated accounts or through issuing
the letter of bank guarantee, total amount of which shall
not be less than 30% of the balance of advances from
customers for sales of prepaid cards. As at 31 December
2015, the Group has deposited cash in the amount of
RMB105 million (2014: RMB100 million) in the Group’s
designated accounts.

As at 31 December 2015, part of the Group’s cash
amounting to RMB133 million (2014: RMB127 million) was
restricted to use for securing bank loan facilities granted
to the Group.

Structured deposits

In 2014, the amount included structured deposits in
licensed banks in the PRC. These structured deposits
have terms of less than three months and have expected
annual rates of return up to 5.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EQUITY AND FINANCING

Equity

As at 31 December 2015, the equity attributable to
owners of the parent amounted to RMB5,028 million,
representing an increase of RMB43 million from 31
December 2014. During 2015, the Company repurchased
approximately 27.7 million shares for a total consideration
(including expenses) of approximately HK$62 million.

Funding Model

Over the past years, the Group has actively diversified the
funding sources, maintained strong long-term relations
with lenders as well as investors and spread out maturities
to reduce refinancing risk.

The Group maintained a strong cash position. Cash and
cash equivalents, time deposits and total restricted cash
stood at RMB1,037 million (2014: RMB2,213 million).
Net bank borrowings and financing notes of the Group
represented bank borrowings and financing notes (net of
cash and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted
cash), that amounted to RMB1,939 million as at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB381 million). The increase
in net bank borrowings and financing notes during 2015
was mainly due to surplus cash is used in new stores
opening, ongoing projects, payments for the acquisition of
a subsidiary and non-controlling interests. As a result, the
decrease in the cash and cash equivalents is recorded.

In July 2015, the Group obtained approval from the
National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors to issue short-term financing notes in one
tranche or more than one tranche with an aggregate
principal amount of up to RMB1.8 billion to domestic
institutional investors in the PRC. On 7 August 2015, the
Group issued the first tranche of short-term financing
notes at par value of RMB500 million with the nominal
interest rate of 3.85% per annum and the effective interest
rate of 4.16% per annum.

On February 2016, the Group obtained approval from
the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors to issue medium-term financing notes in one
tranche or more than one tranche with an aggregate
principal amount of up to RMB2.0 billion with a term of 3
years from the date of issuance to domestic institutional
investors in the PRC. On 25 March 2016, the Group
issued the first tranche of medium-term financing notes
at par value of RMB300 million with the nominal interest
rate of 4.78% per annum and the effective interest rate of
5.13% per annum.

The short-term and medium-term financial notes were
issued to institutional investors in the inter-bank Bond
Market in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DM

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings and

financing notes were as follows:

Bank borrowings and financing
notes repayable:
Within one year or on demand
Over one year but within
two years
Over two years but within
five years

Total bank borrowings and
financing notes

Cash and cash equivalents and

time deposits
Restricted cash

Net bank borrowings and
financing notes

Gearing

FEERRITIER
MEEZ
—F AR AN
—FALERFER

MEAEBERFR

RITERTNBEF B

ReRRSEEN
AT
EREMESD

IRITIERMEE 5 %7

The Group has been careful in using debt gearing to

expand our business in accordance with our business

strategy. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing

ratio stayed at 51% (2014: 39%).

The gearing ratio

is calculated by net debt (including bank borrowings,

financing notes, trade and bills payables and other

payables and accruals minus structured deposits, cash

and cash equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash)

divided by the capital plus net debt of the Group.

SEETEFINMBESFNIMBEREAT

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2015% 20144
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR®BEER) (AR¥B&T)
2,098 300

878 738

- 1,556

2,976 2,594

(799) (1,986)

(238) (227)

1,939 381
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2015, the gearing ratio increased is because surplus
cash is used in the new stores opening, ongoing
projects, payments for the acquisition of a subsidiary
and non-controlling interests. As a result, the cash and
cash equivalents, structure deposits, time deposits and
restricted cash decreased from RMB2,328 million as at 31
December 2014 to RMB1,037 million as at 31 December
2015. The Group will focus on asset light development
model. Capital expenditure will be reduced due to the
completion of ongoing projects, thus, the gearing ratio will
be stabilised.

Liquidity, foreign exchange and interest rate
exposure

The Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level.

The Group conducted its business operations in the PRC
and its revenues and expenses were denominated in
RMB. The Group relies principally on cash flow generated
from its operating activities as a primary source of liquidity.
The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury
management policy and is in a strong liquidity position
with sufficient standby banking facilities to cope with daily
operations and future development demands for capital.
Certain of the Group’s bank balances, bank borrowings
and deposits were denominated in HK$, SGD or US$
which exposed the Group to foreign exchange risks
attributable to fluctuations in exchange rates between
HK$, SGD or US$ and RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk and interest
rate exposure by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s net foreign exchange and interest rate exposures.
Due to the fluctuation of RMB, the Group has reduce the
position of borrowings denominated in HK$ or US$. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates related primarily to the Group’s bank loans with
floating interest rates.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
recorded net foreign exchange losses of approximately
RMB20 million (2014: net foreign exchange losses of
RMB13 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNR DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group had no material contingent liabilities.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Caring and sharing

We are committed to our obligation to take care of our
people, and to work with and nurture the communities
where the stores are located. We are passionate about
our work, our customer’s needs and the world around us.
The Group upholds the value of social obligation and place
emphasis on customer service and employee benefits.

Community

The Group continuously launched a series of cultural
activities including exhibition and workshop activities in the
department stores. During the year, the Group also made
donations of RMB800,000 to charitable organizations.

Staff

Employees are the foundation of our business and
underpin our success. We treasure our employee as well
as encourage the development of talented and motivated
individuals on an ongoing basis in order to support the
development and growth of our operations. Our people
work within motivating remuneration and reward schemes
and are provided with a smoke-free, healthy, inclusive and
safe working environment, where sports, leisure as well as
learning activities are encouraged. The Group has been
advocating lifelong learning to broaden their horizons,
improving the standard of our employees as well as their
personal growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has approximately
8,215 full-time employees in total, of which 3,713 served
the department store business and 4,398 served the
supermarket business (2014: 7,731 full-time employees,
of which 3,281 served the department store business
and 4,349 served the supermarket business). Employees
included management staff, salesmen, workers for the
logistics supporting system and other supporting staff. The
staff costs incurred in the year were approximately RMB610
million (2014: RMB582 million).

Although staff costs continuously grew stably during the
year, employee remuneration packages were maintained
at competitive levels and employees were rewarded on
a performance-related basis. The Group’s remuneration
policy is primarily based on the duties, performance
and length of service of each individual employee with
reference to prevailing market conditions and is reviewed
every year.

Key relationships with supplier and customers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with
a number of our supplier as well as concessionaire and
took great care to ensure that they share our commitment
to product quality and ethics. We work with our business
partners and ensure we share the view for upholding
our value together with customer services, specifically
focusing on attracting and retaining customers.

The Group is committed to offer a board range of goods
and services to satisfy the customer demand. We maintain
the VIP database and have ongoing communications
with our customers through various channels like the
Company’s website, marketing materials and social
media. The stores also stay real time interactive
connection with our customers through the fan clubs on
the social media platform.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNR DT

Environment

The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and
regulations regarding environment protection as well as
adopted effective environment measures to ensure that
the premium across the store networks of the Group meet
the applicable local standards and ethics in respect of
environment protect.

The Group promotes the use of environmental-friendly
material in the stores. Sustainability initiatives were held in
the premium across the store networks by implementing
internal energy saving and recycling activities for the
community to promote and educate awareness of
environment protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China thus the Group’s
business activities are regulated by competent authorities,
laws and regulations of the Chinese government. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business of the
Group. They included laws and regulations on health and
safety, employment, ambient air quality and noise control
as well as fire prevention.

The Group has registered its own domain name and
applied for or registered a number of trademarks of
multiple categories in mainland China and Hong Kong to
safeguard the intellectual property rights.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
ANALYSIS

The following is the key financial ratios used to interpret
the financial performance and position of the Company.

Return on equity
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dividend yield
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After the Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on October 2010, we declared and paid out
interim and final dividends in each year.

BEEENWR DM

BRE Wi E
Dividend per share
Dividend yield FHREE
Rekhzz Closing share price
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Dividend yield was between 4.7% to 6.3% in
the past years.

BEZFHRBWERRIFELT%EC.3%Z
A o

R E R #E
Yearly dividends per share
Dividend payout FESRES
RemgEx Earnings per share

Rk

EARRBR2010F1I0AEEBBMAERHTAE
RAR LM% BRMOEFHE S WK E
NAREIE B o

(273 & HEhAE s QILINM SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILNI ANV IONIHAS

o
@
~

4 GL0C 1HOd3d TVNNNY



ME M Q3 LINM SONIATOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIHAS

pr

NASE2 R

=}

[

f* 47 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang

aged 58 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Chen, the founder of the Group and Chairman of
the Company, is responsible for the overall corporate
strategy planning, business development and investment
of the Group. Since the Group’s incorporation in
1996, Mr. Chen has been engaging in retail business
and actively participating in the management and
development of the Group’s business. He holds an
executive master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Chen is the chairman of honors of the World
Chinese Traders General Association (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(ESERHAZE HLE). Mr. Chen is also the sole director
and shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation, the
controlling shareholder and an associated corporation of
the Company.

Mr. Tao Qingrong

aged 55 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Tao has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
since January 2011 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day management of business and operation of
the Group. Mr. Tao joined the Group in October 2002
as general manager of Shanghai Springland Enterprise
Investment Co., Ltd (EBFEMPEIEEHRR A A) and
later was appointed as general manager of the department
store business of the Group. Mr. Tao is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tao worked for Shanghai Soap Co., Ltd. (&
BHIEERAF) as sales and marketing director from
1997 to 2000, and Shanghai Soap (Group) Product Sales
Co., Ltd. (E/B%I 2 (£E) EREEBFRAF]) as general
manager from 2000 to 2002. Mr. Tao holds a master’s
degree in system engineering from the Shanghai Institute
of Mechanical Technology (/8 # % £ 3) (later known as
University of Shanghai for Science and Technology) and
an executive master’s degree in business administration
from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Tao
is interested in approximately 38.46% of the shareholding
of Celestial Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding
approximately 1.14% of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Yaoming

aged 46 (appointed on 23 May 2011)

Mr. Yu joined the Group in October 2007 as a financial
director and was appointed as vice president of the
Group in May 2011. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting of the Group. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Yu
has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting
and is also a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (CICPA). Mr. Yu holds a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu
worked as an accounting manager of Shanghai SECCO
Petrochemical Company Limited (E&&ERAMIETAR
HIEAF]) from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Yu also worked as a
deputy director of the finance department of SINOPEC
Shanghai Jinshan Engineering Co., Ltd. (FA{t E&&
T2 7R]) from 1999 to 2001 and worked in relevant
units under SINOPEC Shanghai Petrochemical Company
Limited (FEA EBAMIETIROABERAR) from 1992
to 1999.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

aged 48 (appointed on 19 July 2010)

Mr. Fung is a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is
currently the Managing Director of Global Link (CHINA)
Company Limited, a company engaged in the supply of TV
media programmes. He had previously worked as a senior
manager of the North Asia division of ESPN ASIA Limited,
a diversified sports, entertainment and media company
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor of Science

degree from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.

EENEREBAER

WERLE

465% (HHE B E3 - 20114F58238)

B L ER2007F10 A MARE B B EI 42
B WR20MF5ABZEARSERIBE -
NEETZBEASESHEMBER  ®
TEAREEETHBARINES -aiksE
TR A EERB20FLE - AT
Hafigstimpees atERELENH
RABESHBLEBM - EMAAEBRA - 8
FE 2001 F 22007 F ME B8 ERAHM
ITEREFARIEESFEIE - LU 2 AT -
B15C £ A1999F 22001 F A A Ak BF
SIUTRERARMBEERIEF - WH1992F &
1999F MM P B A1k L8 A M TIRH AR
NEHE T A A R -

FHTES

BEHLL

48%% (KL HE : 2010F7A19H)
BEERARARBEZEEENHFMEZ B
@8 - F % £ AGlobal Link (CHINA)
Company Limited * ¢ EHEEHEBEHE A
AIMESBLE - B A BMN1995F 1997
EHHF'HEESPN ASIA Limited " —X % 7T
s IR NERENE 21t B SR
o /%%ihﬁﬁﬂiﬁ FRBASEEL B

B7 B stz Q3 LNM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS

f% 47 G102 1HOd3H TVNNNY



ME M Q3 LINM SONIATOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIHAS

pr

NASE2 R

=}

[

f* 47 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lin Zhijun (&)

aged 61 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Lin is the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is now the dean and
professor of School of Business in Macau University
of Science and Technology. Dr. Lin holds a Master
of Science degree in accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada and a Ph.D degree in economics
(accounting) from Xiamen University. Since 1983, Dr. Lin
worked for various facilities in many academic institutes,
including Xiamen University, and was a visiting professor
in the University of Hong Kong, tenured professor in the
Faculty of Management of the University of Lethbridge
in Canada and head and professor of the Department of
Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University.
He worked for an international accounting firm, Touche
Ross & Co. Canada (now known as “Deloitte”) in Toronto
from 1982 to 1983. Dr. Lin is also a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(CICPA) and the Australian Institute of Certified
Management Accountants (CMA). He is a member of
various educational accounting associations including
the American Accounting Association, the International
Association for Accounting Education and Research and
the Hong Kong Association for Accounting Education.
He is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165) Sinotruk
(Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 3808) and Dali Foods
Group Company Limited (stock code: 3799), all of them
are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. From 2012 to April 2014, Dr. Lin served as
independent non-executive director of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (stock code:
0564), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (3R #E 4io)

aged 63 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Zhang is the chairmen of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Zhang joined China
Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”) in 1997.
Dr. Zhang is currently serves as professor of strategy,
vice president and co-dean, member of the academic
council at CEIBS and programme co-director of CEIBS-
Harvard Business School — IESE Business School Global
CEO Programme for China. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in power mechanical engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong
University and a MSc in marketing and a Ph.D in strategy
from the faculty of commerce and business administration
of the University of British Columbia, Canada. Dr. Zhang
was associate dean and associate professor at the
Management School of Shanghai Jiaotong University. He
is currently an independent director of HUAYU Automotive
Systems Co., Ltd (stock code: 600741), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd (stock codes: 600196 and 2196), a
company dual listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming (38 —§)

aged 47 (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Cheung is a member of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director,
chief executive officer and responsible officer of New
Century Asset Management Limited, a REIT manager of
New Century Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
1275), a REIT listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and
a chartered accountant of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEAER

Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the fields of
investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Mr. Cheung worked for
Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China from
1991 to 1994. In September 1994, Mr. Cheung joined
Citibank (now named Citigroup) as an accountant and
administration manager and held the position of assistant
vice president from September 1996. In October 1997,
he started working in Salomon Smith Barney (now named
Citigroup) as an equity research analyst. Since May 1999,
Mr. Cheung worked for Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette.
He joined HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited as the head of
Hong Kong and China property research department from
November 2000 to April 2005. Mr. Cheung joined Cohen &
Steers Asia Limited in 2005 as a senior vice president and
executive director, supervising its Asia Pacific real estate
investment and research functions. Mr. Cheung worked as
the head of research of DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited
from June 2009 to 2011. From August 2011 to 2013, Mr.
Cheung has been acting as the chief investment officer
of Neutron INV Partners Limited and has been involved in
work such as setting up the Neutron Greater China Equity
Fund and marketing to local and overseas institutional
investors, consultants, distribution intermediaries. He
currently is an independent non-executive director of Best
Pacific International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2111),
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Save as disclosed, the Directors do not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies currently
and in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Zhigiang (#&7&5), aged 41, has been a vice
president of the Group since December 2013. He is
primarily responsible for the operation and management of
the department store business of the Group. Mr. Xu has
almost 20 years of experience in retail sales since joining
the Group in 1996. Mr. Xu holds a bachelor’s degree in
international trade from Chongging School of Commerce
(EE®EPF) and a master’s degree in business
administration from Guanghua School of Management of
Peiking University.

REEREE FBHEEKMEMSHE -
TEREREF T AHEBLEZNLERH -
RAEBE19MIFE19M4FNEBRPE L E
EEETRNEISAT IE - A1994F9R » RESE
I ATEREER 1T (GR W Citigroup) EE TN TR
ITERASIE K B 19960 AR IE T I RF IR -
M19974F10A » M Salomon Smith Barney
(3R Citigroup) MR E(E B SR D ATED -
199945 A + o= % A= £ Donaldson, Lufkin
& Jenrette L {E © 1% 7A20004F 11 H 20054
ARREMEELES (M) BRABEE KT
B EMITEE - R2005%F » RIELEMNA
Cohen & Steers Asia Limited¥&F = 4% 2l 42 &
LATEE BEEBETAFHERER
T 7% B BE © 5K ot A 120096 A 20114 [
FERWMREDTBERAGELHEEE -
20118 A E2013F SR &£ —HEMT
Neutron INV Partners Limited®y1% & # &5 -
2% 37 Neutron Greater China Equity FundA &
MEHEEIIEEIREE  BRERDEFRN
BHETIE -REERABBEBHERIMNA
RAF EmEBRBEEERER AR (AR
S5 2111) 2B IEHITES -

NEEEEHREMRFEN  REALRBE=
FXARBEEEM ETRARNEFBL -

SNREBAE

BREMEE - 4158 - B2013F 12 BHAER
EEFEH HEIEAEAEEEEELEN
BENER - RAEEBT196F INARNER -
HETEHETABEAL20ELS - A%
BEEERESRERE S AR E2 LSt
ANEETIEER THEIEE LT EA -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhu Tao (%78), aged 45, has been a vice president
of the Group since December 2013 and he is responsible
for assets management, store opening, business
expansion and logistic support of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined the Group in 1996 and has previously taken up
various positions in the Group. Mr. Zhu has almost
20 years of experience in department store and retail
businesses. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu worked
for Yixing Wine Factory (EHEEB). Mr. Zhu obtained
a diploma in food processing from Shanghai Fisheries
University (E/8KEKRE) (later known as Shanghai
Ocean University) in 1991. Mr. Zhu is a director of and is
interested in approximately 30.77% of the shareholding
of Celestial Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding
approximately 1.14% interest in the Company.

Mr. Wu Wenjun (& X E), aged 48, has been appointed
as vice-president of the Group since September 2015 and
is responsible for the operation and management of the
supermarket business of the Group. Mr. Wu graduated
from the University of Wollongong (Australia) with a
Bachelor Degree of Arts in Japanese & Management in
1999. Mr. Wu has accumulated 15 years of extensive
experience in food and general retails industry and Mr.
Wu was vice president of Shanghai E-mart Supermarket
before joining the Group and responsible for its operation
in China.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hon Yin Wah, Eva (%##), HKICPA, FCCA, aged
45, joined the Group in August 2010 as the Company
Secretary of the Company. Ms. Hon holds a Bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Ms. Hon is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). She has 20 years of experience
in accounting and financial management and corporate
governance. Prior to joining the Group, she was an audit
manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers and senior executive
of companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited or Nasdaqg Stock Market.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
and management are committed to compliance with
statutory and regulatory corporate governance standards
and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board reviews the
corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the public investors and the other
stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company complied with all the code provisions (the
“Code Provision”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practice (the “Corporate Governance Code”)
under Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
the certain derivations specified with considered reasons
below. No incident of non-compliance by Directors was
noted by the Company in 2015.

Under Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other pre-arranged business commitments which
had to be attended to by him, Mr. Chen Jiangiang, the
Chairman, was not present at the 2015 annual general
meeting held on 18 May 2015. However, Mr. Tao
Qingrong, being an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, was present at the
2015 annual general meeting and was elected chairman
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company to effective communication with shareholders
present. The chairman of the audit committee also
attended the 2015 general meeting and answered
enquires raised by shareholders.
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THE BOARD

Roles and responsibility

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
corporate governance and is ultimately accountable
for the Group’s activities, strategies and financial
performance. The Board has established various
committees to manage and oversee the specified affairs
of the Group. Certain important matters involving finance
and shareholders’ interest are reserved for approval by the
Board, including annual budget, annual and interim results
announcements, dividends, major investment, equity-
related capital market operations, mergers and acquisition
and disposal, major connected transactions, annual
internal control evaluation and appointment of Director(s)
following the recommendation(s) by the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. The Board has to make decision
objectively in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

All operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are the responsibilities of
senior management and their functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, including three Executive Directors and four
Non-executive Directors, among which three of them
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The current
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)
Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun
Dr. Zhang Weijiong
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
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The composition, structure and size of the Board are
reviewed at least annually by the Nomination Committee
to ensure that it has a balance of appropriate skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to meet the
needs of the business of the Group.

Members of the Board have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions. Details of the Directors
and relevant relationships amongst each other are set
out in “Director and Senior Management” section in this
report.

An analysis of the current Board composition is set out in
the following chart:
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer to enhance their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility.
Mr. Chen Jiangiang acting as the Chairman is
responsible for providing leadership in the Board
to set strategies to achieve the Group’s goals.
Mr. Tao Qingrong, the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for managing the business of the Group and
leading the management team to implement strategies
and objectives adopted by the Board.

Appointment, re-election and removal of the
Directors

The Company follows a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision. Thereafter, all Directors are subject to election
by shareholders at the annual general meeting in their first
year of appointment.

Each Non-executive Director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company, for a
specific term of not more than three years subject to
re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or the next annual
general meeting of the Company respectively and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. In addition,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years and one-third (or the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire
from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.
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Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees
(all chaired by Independent Non-executive Director)
with defined terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules:

° Audit Committee
° Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee

Each Committee has the authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the Committee’s responsibilities. To further
reinforce independence and effectiveness, all Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members.

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
electronic means of communication. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Board met four times and
discussed matters relating to the re-election of Directors,
discussed and approved the overall business strategies,
reviewed and monitored the financial and operation
performance of the Group and approved the annual
budget for the Group. Notice and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

A representative of the external auditor attended the
Company’s 2015 annual general meeting to answer
questions from the shareholders on the audit of the
Group.
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According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Articles and Association also contain
provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

The attendance record of each Director for the meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
as follows:
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Attendance/Number of meetings during the year

FRERRY/ BBRY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board Committee = Committee =~ Committee general
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meeting meeting
ERZEE HMWZEE REZEE RRBEFAE
BEng Ezeea S L g% L
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman) BRELE(FE) 4/4 - - - 0/1
Mr. Tao Qingrong WEREE(TTRER) 4/4 - - - 11
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yaoming MERLE 4/4 - - - 171
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BB A 2/4 - il 11 il
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEERT 4/4 4/4 11 il 11
Dr. Zhang Weijiong REMET 4/4 4/4 171 il 0/1
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming R—IBEE 3/4 4/4 11 1/1 01
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and
has three members, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Chairman, Dr. Lin Zhijun
has appropriate professional qualifications, including
membership of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA), the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) and the Australian
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (CMA)
and experience in financial and accounting matters.
Dr. Zhang Weijiong has extensive experience in business
administration. Mr. Cheung Yat Ming has appropriate
professional qualifications, including membership of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICAP) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW) and extensive experience on
the fields of investment, real estate and property market
research, corporate finance and auditing.

Role and Duties

The Board has given the Audit Committee written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and Code Provision C.3 as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference are set out on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Committee meets regularly, at least twice a year, and
gives its full attention to the matters submitted.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include the review of both the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the effectiveness of its internal
control systems. The Committee also oversees the
engagement of the external auditor of the Group and
reviews its independence as well as the effectiveness
of the audit process. The Board expects the Committee
members to exercise independent judgment in conducting
the business of the Committee. A high level review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
is performed at each year end.
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Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Audit Committee:

TEBEE
FR BERZBEE:

reviewed and discussed with management and
external auditor the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 (including estimates and judgments
of a material nature made by management in
accordance with the accounting policies of the
Group) and the related final results announcement,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

reviewed the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2014 Annual
Report of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

reviewed and discussed with management the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2015
(including estimates and judgments of a material
nature made by management in accordance
with the accounting policies of the Group) and
the related interim results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

reviewed and considered the reports and
management letters submitted by the external
auditor, which summarised matters arising from
its audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014;

considered and endorsed the proposed connected
transactions, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

reviewed and considered the scope of work and fee
proposals of the external auditor for the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015; and

conducted a high level review of the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Group (covering
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions) by considering the
work of the management, including a review of
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, and training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.
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Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the
Committee has reviewed the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the
external auditor, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

The Committee was satisfied with the external auditor’s
work, its independence and objectivity, and therefore
recommended the Board that Ernst & Young be
re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for 2016
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report are shown below:

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

Roles and Duties

The Board has given the Remuneration Committee
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision B.1. The
terms of reference are set out on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Committee
shall meet at least once a year. The Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and reviews the special remuneration
packages of all executive Directors. The Human
Resources Department of the Group is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources
data and makes recommendations to the Committee for
consideration. The Committee consults with the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy, structure and
remuneration packages.
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Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Remuneration Committee:

e reviewed and determined the amount of bonuses
awarded to the Executive Directors based on
personal and company performances for the year
ended 31 December 2014; and

e approved and reviewed senior management’s
remuneration, including annual incentive payment for
2014 and 2015 and annual pay review for 2015 and
2016.

Nomination Committee
The members of the Nomination Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report are shown below:

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.

Roles and Duties

The Board has given the Nomination Committee written
terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
A.5. The terms of reference are set out on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Committee
shall meet at least once a year. The Committee is
responsible for the review of Board structure and
composition, identification and recommendation to
the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or reappointment of Director, succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Summary of Work Done
During the year, the Nomination Committee:

o reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including the independence of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors;

° interviewed and selected the proposed candidates for
the vacancy of independent non-executive director,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval,

e considered the proposed changes to the
composition of the Nomination Committee, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

e considered the nomination of three retiring Directors
for the Board’s recommendation to stand for
re-election by shareholders at the 2015 annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Committee considers that the existing members of
the Board have a diverse range of business, financial
and professional expertise in light of the current business
needs of the Company. While the Committee does
not think setting specific requirements for such criteria
as gender and age for the Board composition are
appropriate, it does believe that these are important
elements which will bring a diversity of perspectives
into the Board and, along with a diverse mix of skills,
experience and knowledge that the Board should
have in view of the prevailing business strategy of the
Company, should be taken into consideration for all Board
appointments in the future.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive
Director of his independence to the Group. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent with respect to the Group.
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Directors’ commitments

Each Director confirmed that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015. All Directors have disclosed
to the Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies or
organizations. Each Director is also requested to provide a
confirmation to the Company semi-annually and notify the
Company Secretary in a timely manner of any change of
such information.

Induction, training and continuing development

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his appointment so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

A strategy session is organised by the Company for the
Board once a year to discuss and review the long-term
business and corporate strategy of the Group.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for the purpose of discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.
All Directors are required to provide the Company with the
records of the training they received annually. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, all Directors have confirmed
that they have attended training sessions by reading
regulatory updates or attending briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant to the business or their directors’
duties.

The Board is provided with monthly management updates
which contain the latest financials and highlights of key
matters of the Group. The management updates give a
balanced and understandable assessment in sufficient
detail to assess the performance, position and prospects
of the Group.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for the Directors in connection with the discharge of their
responsibleness.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations
under the Model Code on a regular basis. Specific
confirmation has been obtained from each Director to
confirm compliance with the required standards set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2015.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of
the Company for each financial period.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the financial
year and profit or loss for the financial year. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Directors consider
that in preparing the financial statements, the Company
has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates, and that all applicable
accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are not aware that any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.
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HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND THE
REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year were the Directors and the senior management
members of the Group. Details of the Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12
respectively of the financial statements. The remuneration
of the senior management whose profiles are included
in the Directors and Senior Management section of this
report fell within the following bands:
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RMB1,000,001 to
RMB1,500,000

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group and comparable market
statistics, including the prevailing market rate for
executives of similar position.

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based
on duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.
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RETIREMENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by the relevant PRC municipal governments.
The Group’s relevant PRC subsidiaries contribute funds
to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees which are calculated based on certain
percentage of the average employee salary as stipulated
by the local municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the aforesaid
contributions.

The Group makes contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance in Hong Kong for all employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held in
separate trustee administered funds. The pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 were RMB61
million. Details of the contribution retirement schemes are
set out in note 10 of the financial statements.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. There was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the
Board for matters relating to the duties of the Directors,
such as by giving advice on corporate governance
developments. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the
relationship between the Company and its shareholders,
including assisting the Board in discharging its obligations
to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
Secretary confirmed that she has complied with all
the required qualifications, experience and training
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were reappointed independent auditor of
the Company at the 2015 annual general meeting. Ernst
& Young has written to the Audit Committee confirming
that they are independent and that there is no relationship
between Ernst & Young and the Company which may
reasonably be thought to bear on their independence. In
order to maintain their independence, Ernst & Young will
not be employed for any non-audit work by the Company
unless the non-audit work meets the criteria suggested in
the Listing Rules and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee.

During the year, the total remuneration in respect of
statutory audit services amounted to RMB2.9 million
(2014: RMB2.9 million), of which a sum of RMB2.7 million
(2014: RMB2.6 million) was paid to Ernst & Young. Ernst
& Young has not provided any non-audit work for the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect of
the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of the report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the maintenance
of sound and effective internal control systems within
the Group. The Board has delegated to management the
implementation of such systems of internal controls as
well as the review of relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management procedures.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with
the responsibility to review the internal control systems
of the Group, which include financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Group’s internal control system including a defined
management structure with limits of authority is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposal, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. Those systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department and management
conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The annual internal audit plan,
which is approved by the Audit Committee, is based on
a risk assessment methodology. The Audit committee
reviews the findings and opinions of Group Internal Audit
and management on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control systems and reports to the Board on such
reviews.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board
through the Audit Committee, have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of
the Group. In respect of the year ended 31 December
2015, the Board considered the internal control systems
effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
which might affect shareholders were identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

In March 2012, the Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy of the Company which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company,
in order to enable shareholders of the Company to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders of the Company and potential investors to
engage actively with the Company.

Disclosure of information on Company’s Website
The Company endeavours to disclose all material
information about the Group to all interested parties
as widely and as timely as possible. The Company
maintains a corporate website at www.springlandgroup.
com.cn where important and updated information about
the Group’s activities and corporate matters such as
annual and interim reports, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for
review by shareholders and other stakeholders. When
announcements are made through the Stock Exchange,
the same information is made available on the Company’s
website.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting provides an important
opportunity for constructive communication between the
Board and the Shareholders. The Board maintained an
on-going dialogue with the Shareholders and answered all
questions raised by the Shareholders throughout the last
annual general meeting held on 18 May 2015.

Investor Relations

During the year, the Company strived to improve
transparency and communications with shareholders and
investors. Meetings and conference calls with investors
and analysts were held, in order for the Company to
understand their views and to keep them abreast on the
latest developments. Inquiries on the Company were also
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or moving a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting.

The Board shall convene such meeting within 21
days from the date the requisition deposited and the
extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition. The written
requisition may be sent to the Board or the Company
Secretary to the Company’s head office or principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the Company within
the seven days period commencing the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period
as may be determined and announced by the Directors
from time to time) and in no event ending no later than
seven days prior to the date appointed for such meeting.
The procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Investor Relations (Corporate Governance
subsection) of the Company’s website.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

1 Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong
Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited.

2  Shareholders and the investment community may
at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

3  Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in
writing to the Company Secretary at the office of the
Company at Suite 1508, 15/F, Cityplaza Four, 12
Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

4 Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meeting.
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The Directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 21 June 2006. The Group is principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets in
the PRC. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1
to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 38(a) to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out on pages 77
to 191 of this report.

During the year, an interim dividend of HK$4 cents per
ordinary share was paid. The Board recommended
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 of HK$7 cents in cash per ordinary share
to the shareholders appeared on the register of members
of the Company as at 31 May 2016. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as
a separate allocation within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this report
and note 45 to the financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under Cayman lIslands Companies Law, the Company
may pay dividends out of profit or its share premium
account in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company and provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As of 31 December 2015, the Company’s share premium
available for distribution amounted to RMB1,034 million,
of which RMB142 million has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. Details of which are set out in note
45 in the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCING
NOTES

Bank borrowings and financing notes of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB2,976 million,

details of which are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB800,000.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published financial results and financial
position of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 192. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2015 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Dr. Zhang Weijiong

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, three of the Directors, namely, Mr. Chen
Jiangiang, Dr. Lin Zhijun and Mr. Cheung Yat Ming shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

There are no other matters that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which shall
not be terminated within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2015
were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights through any other corporate entities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions” below, no contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a
party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries or any company controlled
by a director or controlling shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2015.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)
(including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have been taken under such provisions of
the SFO) or the Model Code or which were required to be
entered in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Approximate

Number of ordinary shares percentage

EEREA of the issued
Corporate share capital
Name of Director Note interests Total HERTRAEMN
=g i3 LEER &t Bk
Mr. Chen Jiangiang a 1,442,500,000  1,442,500,000 59.58%
BREmEs
Note: B i

(@) These shares were held by Octopus (China) Holdings
Limited, in which is wholly owned by Octopus Holdings
Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of
Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited. Both Octopus Holdings Foundation
and Octopus (China) Holdings Limited are holding
companies of the Company, each of them is an
associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO.

(2) Short position in the shares of the Company and
its associated corporations
As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to any
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, whose interests have been
disclosed in the above section “Interests of Directors
and Chief Executive”) had interests of 5% or more in the
shares of the Company notified to the Company under the
provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

1. Long position in the shares of the Company
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BRI ZEHFTIREARNNEEFXZESTHA
BN A KRR RIRDE5%E A R ¢

1. ARATRGHOER
Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares Notes HERT
RREB 54 EERHA 7 BRENEIH
Octopus Holdings Foundation Interest of controlled corporation 1,442,500,000 a 59.58%
REHEE RS
International Value Advisers, LLC Investment manager 269,024,000 b 11.15%
REKE
Notes: B iz
(@ Octopus (China) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned (a) Octopus (China) Holdings Limitedg

(o)

by Octopus Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the
sole shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation is
deemed to be interested in Shares held by Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited.

These interests are held by International Value
Advisers, LLC in the capacity of investment manager.

2. Short position in the shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2015, the Company had not
been notified of any short positions being held by
any substantial shareholder in the shares of the
Company.

Octopus Holdings Foundation® &
A o R % & AOctopus Holdings
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Octopus (China) Holdings Limited# &
MR = -

(b) %% # % JyHEinternational Value
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INTERESTS OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had not been
notified of any persons other than the substantial
shareholders who had interests or short positions in
the Shares of the Company, which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to
the Directors of the Company, the Company repurchased
a total of 27,730,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$61.7 million. The
27,730,000 repurchased shares and 11,920,000 treasury
shares were cancelled during the year 2015. The number
of issued shares of the Company as of 31 December 2015
and the date of the Report was 2,421,050,000 shares.

Details of the share repurchase and other movements in
the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 38(a) to the financial statements.

The repurchases were made for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole with a view to
enhancing the earnings per share and net asset value per
share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their
respective associates had any interests in the businesses,
other than being a director of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and their respective associates, that compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions of
the Company passed on 30 September 2010. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force until 29 September
2020.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract,
retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage
the participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Group and allow the participants to enjoy the
results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. The Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer any employee, management member or Director of
the Company, or any member of the Group, and third
party service providers options to subscribe for shares
on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The
amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.

The maximum number of shares which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed the number of shares that shall
represent 10% of issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
250,000,000 shares) as at the Listing Date. The limited
on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed such number
of shares as shall represent 30% of the shares issued by
the Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting, the Board shall not grant options to any
person if the acceptance of those options would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to
that person on exercise of his/her options including both
exercised and outstanding options during any 12-month
period exceeding 1% of the total shares then in issue.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
period to be notified by the Board to the grantee save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
business day on which the option is deemed to have been
granted in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe
for shares upon exercise of an option shall, be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the offer date; (i) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
and up to the date of this Report, no options have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme by the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions which constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
set out in Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

Continuing connected transaction - loan for the
outstanding consideration for the disposal of
Deposits & Financial Products

On 30 April 2014, indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, Jiangsu Springland International Holding
(Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu Springland”) and Wuxi Xishan
Yaohan Lifestyle Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”)
as sellers entered into an agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with Mr. Chen Jiangiang (the “Purchaser”),
whereby Jiangsu Springland disposed the Financial
Product and Xishan Yaohan disposed the Deposit for
the considerations in the amount of RMB180 million
and RMB100 million respectively to the Purchase. The
considerations in the amount of RMB280 million were
agreed to be paid on/before 31 December 2014 in cash
by the Purchaser.
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On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan
Yaohan and the Purchaser entered into the supplemental
agreement and extended the payment date for the
outstanding consideration under the Disposal Agreement
in the amount of RMB182 million to 31 December 2016.
Starting from 1 January 2015, interest is charged on
the amount due from the Purchaser under the Disposal
Agreement with an interest rate of 3.5% per annum.
During the year, the Purchaser has paid RMB6.37 million
to the Group as interest of the outstanding consideration
under the Disposal Agreement.

The Purchaser, Mr. Chen, the Chairman and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, loan for the outstanding consideration under
the Disposal Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the entering into of the Disposal Agreement by
Jiangsu Springland and Xishan Yaohan and Mr. Chen for
the disposal of the Financial Product and the Deposit and
extension of payment date of outstanding consideration
arrangement have been set out in the announcements
dated 2 May 2014 and 16 December 2014 issued by the
Company.

Connected transaction - acquisition of Octopus
(Singapore) PTE Limited

On 1 July 2015, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Octopus (Singapore) Holdings Limited to
acquire the 100% equity interests in Octopus (Singapore)
PTE Limited. The consideration for the acquisition of
the 100% equity interests in Octopus (Singapore) PTE
Limited was SDG1 which was calculated based on the
net asset value of Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited as at
30 June 2015. The consideration was settled by cash on
1 July 2015. Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited engaged
in management consulting and trading business. Through
the acquisition, the Group started cross-boundary and
import businesses. Mr. Chen, the Chairman and the
controlling shareholder of the Company is the 100%
ultimate owner of Octopus (Singapore) Holdings Limited.
Octopus (Singapore) Holdings Limited is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Views of the auditors and independent non-executive
Directors

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to
the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
confirming that, for the year ended 31 December 2015,
the connected transaction and continuing connected
transaction (i) has received the approval of the Board;
(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii)
has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant
announcements made by the Company in relation in the
continuing connected transaction.

Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transaction has been entered into by the Group
in the ordinary and usual course of its business, either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties, and in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
above connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 44 to 62.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the
Group’s customers or suppliers accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. None of the
Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the five largest customers or five
largest suppliers of the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands pursuant to which the Company shall
be obliged to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 44 to the financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire as the Company’s
auditor and a resolution for their re-appointment as the
Company’s auditor will be proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Springland International Holdings Limited
Chen Jiangiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ernst & Young

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries set out on pages 77 to 191, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

18 M % BLED ]

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015,
and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REVENUE
Other income and gains

Purchase of and changes
in inventories
Staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Share of loss of
a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic and diluted (RMB)

L'ON
H AW A R e
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HERX
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& B A

DERELEBE

Bk Bt A1 38 A

PSR X

FEEF

AT &AL :
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FE 16 5 IR 03 R
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Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—F

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
J/okza AR T AREFIT
6 4,167,905 4,276,284
7 606,359 721,171
(2,413,998) (2,439,392)
(610,233) (582,732)
(345,390) (332,814)
(118,308) (98,196)
8 (553,969) (525,427)
9 (33,768) (49,201)
(2,991) (49,426)

10 695,607 920,267
13 (205,401) (274,696)
490,206 645,571

15 480,288 634,065
9,918 11,506

490,206 645,571

15 0.20 0.26
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AeZHEWEKR

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Other comprehensive income

to be reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments:
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustments
for gains included in the
consolidated statement of

profit or loss — gain on disposal

Income tax effect

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income

to be reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Notes

iog=3
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BERINRBEE

VI = HE

HEAENEAER
B E 2 W e B
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AR ZTHFEAG
SRRER A 14
JEVE R R

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T AR¥EF T
490,206 645,571
- 33,092
- (31,300)
- (448)
- 1,344
(54,702) (2,174)
- (830)
- (830)
435,504 644,741
425,586 633,235
9,918 11,506
435,504 644,741




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land premiums

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Investment in a joint venture

Investment in an associate

Available-for-sale investments

Long-term prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Restricted cash

Long-term time deposits at banks

Due from the controlling
shareholder

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Due from the controlling
shareholder

Derivative financial instruments

Structured deposits

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term financing notes
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified
as held for sale

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
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MENA AR
REBAEEFE
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Notes
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17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
29
29

40

25
26

27
40
28

29
29

39

30

32
33

39

e MR R R

31 December 2015

201512 A431H

2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT—AF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARBETT
8,199,356 6,448,638
1,680,781 872,334
35,286 38,349
304,440 181,494

- 237,851

- 45,166

110 110

75,791 614,924
91,727 54,197
104,725 227,580
170,141 162,304

- 182,000
10,662,357 9,064,947
322,969 323,055
9,781 12,164
276,357 237,630
182,000 =

- 389

- 115,000

132,872 -
629,061 1,822,664
1,553,040 2,510,902
26,400 26,400
1,579,440 2,537,302
506,747 -
1,591,115 299,887
1,123,786 1,118,740
2,208,522 1,827,705
78,430 78,941
5,508,600 3,325,273
4,769 4,769
5,513,369 3,330,042
(3,933,929) (792,740)
6,728,428 8,272,207
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R &

31 December 2015
2015512 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & B R 1T
Long-term payables R HA e 5RI8
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRIBEE
Total non-current liabilities IERBAEEERE
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BARERA
of the parent FE 1 R &=
Issued capital B BITRA
Treasury shares E 7%
Reserves 1
Non-controlling interests JEE R
Total equity BT

Chen Jiangiang
PR 22 o

Director

EF

Notes

iog=3

31
35
24

38(a)
38(a)

Tao Qingrong
P B 8
Director

EF

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T AR¥EF T
877,750 2,294,332
73,370 314,895
559,600 465,757
1,510,720 3,074,984
5,217,708 5,197,223
20,907 21,249

- (102)
5,006,911 4,963,259
5,027,818 4,984,406
189,890 212,817
5,217,708 5,197,223




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31ALEFE
Atrbutable to owners of the parent
BRTEAARS
Avalble-
forsale
nvestment Exchange
revaliation ~ Statutory fiuctuation Non-
Issued Treasury Share  Contributed Capital Tesene surplus Discrefionary reseve  Retained controling Totd
capial shares premium surpls eee  TEHE [eServe TeSEIe Ef eamings Totd Interests equity
BEfIRE ERR  RhEE  EMBK  EAEE REBRER iRARE  BREE  RBEE  RURM & febEs  BEauE
Noigs ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBIOO RVBO  RWBOD  RWBON RVB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RWB00  RMBUON0 RMBI000
B ARETr  ARETn  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Note 38/ Note 38(3) Note 380) Note 38c) ~ Note 38(0)
Ky By Kty Ky By
At January 2014 HOMEIR1R 2,572 - Tiee [1512) (21,019 (1,34 609,442 B0 19646 237210 479,172 20712 5025884
Proftfor e year Eiil - - - - - . . ST SR 37
Other comprefensie income FEAbNagE
forthe year:
Changes i far value of TRHEREATRSE
vl forsae filk3E
investments, net of tax - - - - 1,34 - - - - 1344 - 1,34
Eichange iferences on BEBNE]£E
randlafon of foreign
operations = = = = = = = 2174 = [2174) - (AIL]
Tota comprenensie ncome ERRRNaLE
for e e - - - - - - SR w5 6B f1ED B
Revecognon of non-contoling 2 HEARH
intress eted o he FRERHARD
ut options = - = = = - = = - = - e 21566
Acquistion of non-contoling IEERER - - - - {495) - - - - - (%3 62 128
Interests
Appropration fo stautory RN £
Surplus resenve - - - - - 111,591 - - () - - -
Diidends paidtonon-cortroling. —~~ RRRETHERKR
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (8.298) 82%8)
Final 2013 dividend declared BRENISERERE = - (166889) - - - - - - - (166,608 - (16688)
ein 2014 didend NUERERS 1 . - (B . - - - - - - -
Repurchse of shres EERZ 38 - (5 (1672 - - - - - - - (e - (1
Canoelaton of reasury shres THERR 3 (39 0 - - - - - - - - - - -
Devecogrion ofnoncontoling ~ FERERHAL
interests and recogniion of EARER LR
the iference between the Hek
derecognised non-contoling ERENED
Interests and the fiablty
ofthe put options = = = = %1 = = = = = %1 (25408 25,47)
At 31 December 2014 RO1UERANAE 21,249 (102 1,338,645 1512 (%5773 A 721,083 B0 17472 2879084 4984406 22817 5197228
# Share premium has been adjusted for the proposed final # A% 17 45 (B B 4% 12 FR 45K 28 /92014 F REARR 2

2014 dividend in accordance with the current year’s,
presentation, which is disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial

statement.

EAFENRETETAE IR HRE
BizEo. 4 iR 5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERRBER

Year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable to owners of the parent

Share
premium
BrER
RMB'000

ARETR

Statutory
surplus
reserve

itelig

RMB'000

ARBTR

Note 381c)

a0

Total
equity
B

RMB'000
ARETT

1,338,645

12108

5,107,228

490,206

(54702

(174244
805%|
956

9289

435,504
a1t

i
[368,60)

(13384
(174204
(80555
0

HZE2015F12A31AEFE
Notes

A1 January 2015 ROEIA1R
Proftfor the year Efigh
Other comprehenshie income EmEfiEgE:

forthe year:
Bxchangs diferencas on ENEHnERRE

ransltion of foreign operafions
Totel comprehensive income for year EhEENGEE
Re-tecagnton of on-<ortroling B ERE R RS ARD

Interests relted to the put options
Captal inecton fiom nor-contoling FohRRE

shareholders
Aoquiston of non-contoling nteests YiEsahEs
Aopropriaon o stautory suplusresene.  BBZETLRS
Dhidends ped t non-contling FHRE FHERERR

shareholders
Finel 2014 dividend declred BEENUERERE "
Iieim 2015 diidsnd WisEnERS i
Repurchase o shares EARZ 3
Cancelaton of eastry shes THERR 3
At 31 December 2015 R15E12A31R

1,004,204

813,026*

5,217,108

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of RMB5,006,911,000 (2014: RMB4,963,259,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

ZERFBRPAX

Non-

Retained controlling

eamings Total  interests

REzh B FERES

RMBI000  RMB'O0  RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

2079684 4984406 12817

480,288 480,288 9918

- (54,702) -

480,288 425,386 9918

45703 205408

- - 45

(103266)  (f23106)  (45.284)

(92,093) - -

- (13,384)

- (e -

- (80,53) -

- 49.902) -

3163813 5,027,818 189,890
T BRI RN

= A
Ra

& B AR #5,006,911,0007T (20144 © A
R #4,963,259,0007T)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating
activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land premiums
Amortisation of other
intangible assets

Share of loss of a joint venture

Loss on disposal of items

of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange differences
Gains on disposal of unquoted

current investments stated

at cost

Gains on disposal of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Gains on bargain purchase

recognised in other income and

gains in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:

Available-for-sale listed

investments (transfer from

equity on disposal)
Derivative instruments

— transactions not qualifying

as hedges

Dividend income from available-
for-sale listed investments

Finance costs
Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of property, plant

and equipment

Interest income

Provision for slow-moving
inventories

Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables, prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

Increase in long-term
prepayments

Decrease in trade and bills
payables,other payables
and accruals

Increase in long-term payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating

activities

Notes
Bt
REEKEFBEESRE
B A4 AT )
MY S BEELAE
e 10
TEAS £ i 5 <2 4 6N
10
H b 4 A 5
10
SEEENEEIR 10
BEEME  BE&EXE
i 10
PE K =%
RERKAENIELT
BHR A e
10
RERAFEAEEHEZS
AT E W= 10
BRELSE WS RE MU A
g %5 AR A I B U e
10
NEERERFE
AR E FmEE
(feEzsg e A)
7
PTESLRITA
—FFEE PR S
7
REAEEE ETREN
fi% B A 10
B & KA 9
BB EERE 20
Y - BB REERE
A=A 17
SN 7
T B
10
FERAD
FEUE 5 FR0A -
FEIRIE - e R EM
FE UG ZRIE Y (38 00) R A
FHATE N FOBE A1 0
JEHE 508 K A =
%@%Hﬂﬁ&@ﬁﬁﬁ
£ 87 < 2R
KERBRE
BETEE
KEERB SR ANFE

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE
2015 2014
—E—-RF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AREEF T
695,607 920,267
330,484 318,062
11,843 11,689
3,063 3,063
2,991 49,426
10,882 9,240
19,909 13,448
- (1,736)
(1,430) =
(95) =

- (31,300)

389 (607)

- (3,301)
33,768 49,201
- 25,000
33,000 =
(47,900) (127,919)
301 718
1,092,812 1,235,251
1,709 59,610
(41,464) 25,306
(2,770) (4,478)
(14,557) (332,175)
10,268 10,985
1,045,998 994,499
(207,901) (282,458)
838,097 712,041
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

Cash flows from investing

activities

Interest received

Gains on disposal of unquoted
current investments stated at cost
Gains on disposal of investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Dividends received from
available-for-sale listed
investments

Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
Government grant related to

prepaid land premiums

Payments of prepaid land premiums
Proceeds paid for acquisition of

a subsidiary
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Increase in loan to a joint venture

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale listed
investments

Decrease in the unquoted current
investments stated at cost

Increase in amounts due

from the controlling shareholder
Decrease in structured deposits
Decrease in restricted cash
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits

Net cash flows (used in)/from

investing activities

2015 2014
—E-0fF —E-EF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBT T
REZHFEBRERE
2 H A 38,537 135,091
BERKAGTERNIE LT
5o AR B Wam - 1,736
BEERATEFEEEES
FFAB R E W= 1,430 =
I HR A it H S IR E RS
- 3,301
BEUWE BWEKEE
(1,096,614) (809,293)
HEME  WERREE
Fr1S 3K 18 1,457 1,443
EATE - £ #b 3 AR RE - 1,748
B D8I 48 K
S EMN LIRS (439,404) (322,013)
AT BB A R E - (4,599)
W BB B A R) (148,499) (20,000)
BERTEE DRI (30,000) (30,000)
BEAHEE M
BE BB RIE
- 179,226
%K AN FTHE A9 JE £ T AT BB
& /R - 14,000
JFE A4 I S BR B TR 3 A0 - (182,000)
EE TR AR D 115,000 1,772,000
ZREEESHRD - 330,000
TEEFEZORD () 420,370 (92,270)
RETE (FTA) FERERE
FHE (1,137,723) 978,370




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from financing
activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings

Increase in an amount
due to an associate

Acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Repurchase of the Company’s
shares

Repayment of principal and
interest of the short-term
financing notes

Contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Proceeds from issuance of
short-term financing bonds

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the statement
of cash flows

MELTEEBRERE

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁa

HiERITIE /TA

R RR /NI E /@]
0

o B8 JEE B A 25

AN

EEEHRESAE
R F B

IR AR A B
BITRHRES

BENEE
B 5 SR B R AR B

ERNHE
METHMARSREFHE

iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
BA) %R
i%ﬂiﬁi&fﬁ/\“ﬁ%

SMNEEXEFHNTE  FR

FRESRREEEY

RERBREESENRERIN
e RIRITRES
BAKRR=EARZ

H 0 S 4540 E 3 K

RESRERITHRE
REEEEY

GEHETRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

2015 2014

—E-HE —F-ImF

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
KiaF ARET R AREFIT
(1,913,874) (2,622,686)

1,650,000 3,251,391

14,795
(298,312) (20,216)
(49,902) (117,147)
- (941,310)

415 =

498,500 =
(254,887) (323,052)
(13,384) (8,298)
(102,551) (66,777)
(483,995) (833,300)

(783,621) 857,111

1,310,094 441,623

10,388 11,360

536,861 1,310,094

29 504,393 534,881
32,468 775,213

536,861 1,310,094
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Springland International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands
on 21 June 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 21 October 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate

1. 2AIREEEHR

EWEBERER AR ((AQF]) K
20066 A21ERERSHE RARES

22% (19614 A 73

A REFT)

EREHEAMKNIREREER A
A] o AN R A) 5% it #F = 5% b 3k A Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° 22 A]7A2010910 A21 A fE B
RAETERE™ °

ARBRENBRAR (AHWIAKE])
TERPFEAREEREERET -
ARREE(EF)RA A& H

H) B AR R

LN

7] AOctopus Holdings

Foundation * —fA A S B S Mk

holding company of the Group is Octopus Holdings BIAF] e
Foundation, a company incorporated in the Cayman

Islands.

Information about subsidiaries Ll NEIRZE S

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows:

ARREEMBARFBEET :

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name BEMARYL/ RIR BERT/ER AEBES activities
AR BB KewURAE ELTERREAEE READM TEXRH
Springland International Group BVI US$1 100% Investment holding
Company Limited @4 12 June 2006 e REZR
ZMEREEBR A 7 ABRAES
2006F6H12H
Springland (Hong Kong) Limited ©“ Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Investment holding
25 January 2006 18T REER
BE
200651 H25H
Novel Vanguard Investment Limited @ BVI US$1 100%  Investment holding
MBREFR AR 21 November 2011 1% REZKR

EBEZES
2011411 A21H



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()

ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name BEMARYL/ RIR BERT /R AE@ERS activities
AR A Kew¥RAE ELTERRAHEE BEEDM TEXE
Springland International Enterprises Hong Kong HK$38,000,000 100% Investment holding
Limited @ 17 June 1993 38,000,0007% 7T REER
FBEERERERRFOW 0
1993464178
Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited © Singapore SGD900,000 100%  Investment holding
FTI0%  900,000% N3 T REER
28 August 2014
201458 H28H
Jiangsu Springland International PRC/Mainland China  US$360,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Holdings (Group) Ltd. 12 February 1996 360,000,000 T REER
TEEMBRZEREBFR AR mE /BN
1996424128
Shanghai Springland Enterprise PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB100,000,000 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. ® 6 November 1996 AR REER
FBENCEREERAR RE/HREMS 100,000,000
199611 A6H
Changshu Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 29 July 2004 ARE department stores
BHREHEEERATCY hE/RE N 20,000,0007¢ ReBEE
200447 H29H
Danyang Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB260,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 March 2004 ARE department stores
AEEREEERATY RE/HEAM  260,000,0007 KEBEE
2004F3A17H
Jiangsu Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB35,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 March 2001 AR supermarkets
TIHAGERYPOERD O hE/RE N 35,000,0007¢ geBm

20014637 14H

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()
ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMRL/ RIR BERT/®RE AEBELN activities
ARERB ReEWBRAYH EERREAEE BREESL TEEH
Jiangyin Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 5 June 2003 AR department stores
TIRZEMAEERAAC RE /B 130,000,000 and supermarkets
2003F6A5H BEREERBD
Jintan Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China  RMB215,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 April 2003 ARE department stores
SEAGEBYTLERAFR /B A 215,000,000 and supermarkets
2003F4A17H KeRgEERBT
Liyang Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China  RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 2002 ARE supermarkets
EGAGEBNTROERAAY mE /B 10,000,0007T ERT
200246 H28H
Liyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB110,000,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. © 29 April 2002 AR department stores
EGN\EHBERLBERAF mE /B 110,000,0007T BEBE
200244 A29H
Liyang No.1 Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,225,000 100% Property holding
Co., Ltd. @ 22 May 2001 ARE REMF
EEmRE—EERAR hE/RE RN 1,225,0007C
2001F5H22H
Ma’anshan Yaohan Trading Center PRC/Mainland China  RMB141,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 22 August 2008 AR department stores
SRUNEHEEERAAY HE /B A 141,000,0007¢ BERERE
200848 H22H
Wuxi Springland Investment PRC/Mainland China  RMB490,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd. @ 15 April 1980 ARE REZR
BHENREERERAA HE /B 490,000,0007T
1980F4 A 150



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()
ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMRL/ RIR BRT/BR AEBELN activities
AR EB Kew¥RAE ELTERRAHEE BEZEDML TEXH
Wuxi Angexin Technology Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of
EHTRENBERAFO 27 July 2006 ARE technology service
RE/ R E R 5,000,0007T R LRI R 5
2006F7 A27H
Wuxi Datonghua Shopping Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
EHARERBYERAFY 25 September 2006 AR supermarkets
RE/ R E R 20,000,0007T GEBm
20065 9H25H
Wuxi Huiquan Logistics Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of
EHEZNMRBBAR 26 March 2007 ARE logistics service
/R E R 10,000,0007T REYIRIRE
200743 H26H
Wuxi Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB301,911,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. ¥ 25 March 1994 ARE department stores
BHN\EHEERLOERAAY mE /B 301,911,000 BERER
1994F3 A25H
Wuxi Yuandongli Consulting Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Provision of
EHFEBNFEAERAA 26 April 2006 ARE consultation service
RE/ R E R 2,000,0007T R AR
200654 H26H
Yixing Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB80,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 24 May 2000 ARE department stores
HEZEWAEERAAC mE /B 80,000,0007T BERER
200045 H24H
Yixing Housa Plaza Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% Operation of
HEEMMEESAERAAM 13 February 2004 AR department stores
RE/ R E R 30,000,0007T BERE

2004F2 A413H

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 2R MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()
ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMRL/ RIR BRT/BR AEBELN activities
AR EB Kew¥RAE ELTERRAHEE BEZEDML TEXH
Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB350,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. ¥ 28 August 2006 AR department stores
BEImN\BHEEERAFY mE /B 350,000,0007T and supermarkets
200658 A28H BERBERBT
Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB31,938,786 98.58% Operation of
Joint Stock Company Limited € 16 September 1993 ARE department stores
mE\BEHEERNBRA R mE /B 31,938,7867C BERER
1993F9H16H
Nantong Boda Tengfei Advertising PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 88.72% Provision of
Co., Ltd.@ 19 January 2006 ARE advertising service
HBEEABRESAERAR mE /B 500,0007¢ RAEE S MR
200651 H19H
Changxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB75,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 November 2009 ARE department stores
RE\BHBEARARY mE /B 75,000,0007T and supermarkets
2000F11A17H BEBEERBD
Taixing Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China  RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 2 December 2010 ARE supermarkets
FEDARERDPLERAFY mE /R 10,000,0007T KEBm
2010512 A2H
Changzhou Yaohan Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 September 2010 ARE department stores
BEMNEAREEERDEY R/ B A 10,000,0007T and supermarkets
2010697178 BEBBERBD



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()
ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMRL/ RIR BRT/BR AEBELN activities
AR EH KewURAE ELTERREAEE BEZADM TEXRH
Anging Yuexin Xinglida Real Estate PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Property holding
Development Co., Ltd. ¢ 8 February 2007 AR REME
ZENEENERWERBARAT AR RE /B A 130,000,0007C
200792 A8H
Xuancheng Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB153,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 1 September 2011 ARE department stores
ERN\BHEEERAAY B/ E R 153,000,0007T and supermarkets
201159A1H BEREERED
Jiangsu Green Land Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 100% Supply of vegetables
Technology Development Co., Ltd. ® 23 August 2011 AR g%
ISR ERRERERAFY RE /B 5,100,0007¢
201168 H23H
Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 55% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 1993 10,000,000 7 department stores
BNEREEERARC B/ E R KERERE
1993F6 H28H
Jiaxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB624,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 11 September 2012 AR department stores
RRN\EHEBERDAAP B/ B 624,000,0007C and supermarket
201269A11H BERBERET
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB19,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd.® 5 November 2007 ARE department stores
mRN\BHEEERARY mE /B 19,000,0007T BERER
20074511 A5H
Wuxi Beitang Datonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 21June 2013 AR supermarkets
BEHLRAGEBNERAR hE /R E A 10,000,0007¢ mEEm

2013%6A21H

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS



7% By e AILINT SONITOH TYNOILYNYILNI ANV IONIHAS

=}

[

f% 45 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 2R MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEER (F)

M8 E &R ()
ARREEZMBRARFEBAOT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMAEYL/ BRI BERT/ER AEEER activities
AR EB KewWRAE LTERRAEE BEEDML TEXE
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  US$102,040,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd.? 14 August 2013 102,040,000% T department stores
EHGILNEREEESERAR RE /B R K2BERE
2013F8H14H
Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  RMB400,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd.? 10 December 2014 AR department stores
ERNEHEERBERA AP RE/REMNM  400,000,0007 BEBEE
2014412 5108
Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 65% Leisure drinks
Management Co., Ltd. 14 RE R E R ARE industry
EHEERREEEBB AR 15 July 2015 1,000,0007T HERmE
2015%7A15H
Wuxi Tianmaixianfang Food PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 92%  Food processing
Co., Ltd. 0 RE /R AR RmilT
EHHEHEGRMBR AR 16 July 2015 3,000,0007T
2015%7H16H
Yinian Shanghai Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Trading
Management Co., Ltd. 0 /B A ARE g%
BFE(LB)REEBBERDFM 9 December 2015 20,000,0007C
2015%12A9H
Yixing Rongtong Trade & Commerce PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB129,046,200 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. 0 R/ i ARE supermarkets
EERBEHERRA R 16 December 2013 129,046,2007T Kagm
2013F12A16H
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China USD10,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. 0@ REL R E RN 10,000,000% 7T department stores
HIBEBARER AR 24 December 1993 BERERE
1993F 12 H24H
Zhenjiang Commercial Center PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd, 0@ REL R E A AR department stores
HIRFRARARN 10 March 2009 1,000,0007T BERERE

200943 410H



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

Except for Springland International Group Company
Limited, Novel Vanguard Investment Limited which
are directly owned by the Company, all of the above
Group companies are indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

On 1 July 2015, the company was acquired with paid-
in capital SGD 900,000.

On 18 November 2015, the company’s name was
changed from Cleavebury Limited to Springland (Hong
Kong) Limited.

On 18 November 2015, the company’s name
was changed from Sonton Enterprises Limited to
Springland International Enterprises Limited.

In 2015, the Group acquired the minority equity of 40.5%
of Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade Joint Stock
Company Limited (F 8/ \ B2 Z R ERAF).

In 2015, Jiangsu Springland International Holdings
(Group) Ltd. (TE#REMBEBREIERERFR A )
established a subsidiary named Wuxi Tangtangguozhi
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B EE R 718&
EE AP AA), with a shareholding ratio of 65%.

In 2015, Jiangsu Springland International Holdings
(Group) Ltd. (TH#REMBEBREIERERFRA )
established a subsidiary named Wuxi Tianmaixianfang
Food Co., Ltd. (EHFHEHHRMARRAR), with a
shareholding ratio of 92%.

In 2015, Shanghai Springland Enterprise Investment
Co., Ltd. (EBEMMPEIREFRAT) established
a wholly-owned subsidiary named Yinian Shanghai
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (B4 (L&) £EE
HBERAR).

In 2015, after the completion of business registration
change of Yixing Rongtong Trade & Commerce Co.,
Ltd (BEEgimrEE AR A F), Jiangsu Datonghua
Shopping Centre Co., Ltd (I AFZER P LBRA
7l) holds 100% ownership interests of the company.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

RAREEEHR (&)

M8 E &R ()
@ BELBEEEEARARENERER

RAFBARAEEERS - LiAE
SERARHRAARHEREANMER
=i

R2015%F7 18 * #% A 71900,000%7 i1
W E B AN AE -

#2015 11 A18H * % A 7 & 18 H
Cleavebury Limited® & %&Springland
(Hong Kong) Limited

RR20165F11 18R » Z N A& B M A&
CEBRAREERBEFERELEAR

D .

R2015%F - AEBEWE TEAE/AHE
Z %D B IR A F140.5%H) D EA%H#E o

R2016% - TEHEMBEFIEREEFR
RAERL T —HFEAREHEERZKRE
ERAERABNMBLRAE - HFRLOR
65% °

R2015%F » JTEREMRRIE R EEGR
NABRYLT —RELEHHEHEIR R
BRARKMNEBRR @ #FHIEHA92% °

R2015% » LIBEMMEREFR A A
BRI T —REABE(LH)REEER
BARIMEENEB AR -

R2015%F - BERBEE AR AR EE
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NEFHEI100%FFH B -

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

() On 28 February 2015, Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce
& Trade Center Co., Ltd. GBI N\AHEZEER A
Fl) acquired the rest of equity of Zhenjiang Baisheng
Commercial Center Co., Ltd. (SE)L AREEHMAR A
7l), including its wholly-owned subsidiary Zhenjiang
Commercial Center Co., Ltd. (BT ZEH AR A 7).

(k) Types of legal entities:

M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

@ Sino-foreign equity joint venture

© Limited liability company invested by a foreign
invested enterprise

@ Limited liability company

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell as further explained in
note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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MEARER (&)

() H2015F2H28RH BITMNEHEE
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MR ERE
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NG|

@ BREMERQF
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Bz B HREER (BEAENE
R REER - B e ER R2E)
RE YREBELAREFRAUNEE
(REMEPIDHREE R - FRTESR T
BERARAFEFAEADN AP BHRRR
BESKAERE - DRIEREXRBH
FEGEEERREE MR EEKAS
BORFEREEIR  E—-THRE
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BT -
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°

A HEE

KEBMERRBEARAREKBA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 2R MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised
standards for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the
amendments to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current financial year. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
rerised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10
IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to IFRS 11

Financial Instruments®

or Joint Venture®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenug from Contracts with Customers®

Joint Operations'
IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IFRS 16 Leases*

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSS'
2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative’
Disclosure Initiative?
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses?

Effective for annual periods
1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods
1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods
1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods
1 January 2019

beginning
beginning
beginning

beginning

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation’
Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

on

on

on

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate

or after

or after

or after

or after

Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its
annual financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the

Group

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is

available for adoption
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Year ended 31 December 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

2.3I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23CEMEEMAEMRNWER (F)

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of
IFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address
an inconsistency between the requirements in
IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the
activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant principles for business
combinations in IFRS 3. The amendments also clarify
that a previously held interest in a joint operation is
not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional
interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments
do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party. The
amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. In July 2015, the IASB
issued an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-
year deferral of the mandatory effective date of IFRS
15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

2.3I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23CEMEEMAEMRNWER (F)

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial position and
the statement of profit or loss. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

BER &5 ERE 1R ZEF] BIEREEH
BEMNMBEHRR 2RMLEE - %ZF

(BT -

() BIRSHENBEIRANZEANRE

(i) WEREFBRAKRAZEEERE
A DT8R

(i) HE2MAHHRIEZFHAB
BEHE R

(v) A ASABEREATRE
B2y HMEANEBALH B
—HEEH  CHHATREARA
P14 EARS B 3 5 M 1 Uk -

AN - R FER] BB M B AR R R =
REWRBINMNGTZHATE - AEBBEHR
201651 H1B RN ZZEE] - WiBHZ
ZRITHAEBE U BEREALEERY
2,



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the
principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating a business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through the use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1
January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquire over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings
Renovation and leasehold

20 to 40 years
2 to 10 years

improvements
Machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Lease agreement buyouts

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payments to old tenants to buy out their
lease agreements. The lease agreement buyouts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms of 10 to 19 years.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

THMEERME
AEBENEREHRIEEEAEM
EEDSBRRRACRHEEN —HER
BELRRE BEAEEMNIGERAREE
—EXZEEEREcREEN A
MEENAARARREREITE A
ARFESBRA U SRAE  ZE/
BEIZECREERRAERRE -
EBUREE—Ex—AEKALRE
AMBRRE  BOIBRAEHAEX
- BEERWE 2 AT RESETE MM
BEHRARERARENKRBEBAGEZ
BAARARREREZRD  WEBKAX
NEENHATELERZEE B

B KA e < & B

HRABERAIRZEREE I %
BELHERCHEACHEEES
ETRERE  HERSBEIEANE
MEENEBAZEREEASETR
Bl e BTIEEREEBTRNERES R
BE EBRESHERLEAN HEEE
REAGRUGERARRFENEREE
AERNETRERR SEBRANE
BEEMGER N EERBERLDN
TREE TEREEEABELUGEHER
BRI S REEMRSPETTRERA

BEBBRSBRRZEE 2 REERRG
ARBEREZRERNE 2 ZBAE (T
BREEARBEEZARARERER) - BHR
KREREZRERZEREEZLRE
R R (BN )46 FERR B 2 ) 2 A A K)
I -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss —
is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Put options to non-controlling shareholders

In connection with an acquisition of a subsidiary
by the Group, put options were granted to certain
non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiary to
sell their equity interests to the Group. The Group
does not have present ownership interest of the
shares held by those non-controlling shareholders.
The non-controlling interests are recognised at the
date of the business combination, and subsequently
measured according to the policies described in the
basis of consolidation. At each reporting date, the
non-controlling interests are then derecognised as
if they were acquired at each reporting date. The
liability of the put options is then recognised at each
reporting date at its fair value, and any difference
between the amount of non-controlling interests
derecognised and this liability is accounted for in
equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, a
joint venture and an associate, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

QAT ESTTHEBE (8)

Fre®t

PEHREREMMREENIE - BRI
REDZEANERNAEH TSN IER
R MREtzERaEREREDS

AHRBEER ABREDAREKE
AR B 3K ) A5 7 M B S S O BRIR - AR IR R
THEE AR EERMHHRE (K&
BOR)ETHE - XD ERAREEEMER
RERITRERER -

EERBIRNGEEAREERBEND
HEEHFEMBRERENEREEZHY
PBEREZERAAEAFELEE -

EIEBURR R 1B 2 BAERBE 2
RITRR - AT HERBS -

. BETHEAERAGBIREBL
BELASM O 22 S WA R A B B 1R
MEL  MRZBEBTEH G
S5 F R R B R S R FE
XD

o TBRHMBRA - GELERBEDR
AR E AN ERREREZEM
s WEREBENBEEERA T
HIRE R EBEN RARKRAIETE
B [E] B o

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESTTHEME (&)

7% By e AILINT SONITOH TYNOILYNYILNI ANV IONIHAS

=}

[

f% 45 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
a joint venture and an associate, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement
of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Bonus point liabilities

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the Group’s department stores
and supermarkets. The points can then be redeemed
for gifts and coupons, subject to a minimum
number of points being obtained. The coupons are
cash-equivalent when customers use them to
purchase products of the Group.

Consideration received is allocated between the
products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to their
fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying statistical analyses. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

e revenue from direct sales of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised upon the sale of goods by the
relevant stores;

e rental income is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms;

e fee income from suppliers is recognised
according to the underlying contract terms
with suppliers when these services have been
provided in accordance therewith;

e interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

e dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
Government, all the subsidiaries of the Group
that were established in Mainland China (the
“PRC Subsidiaries”) have participated in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC Subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to
pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 5.32% has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. In prior years, final dividends proposed by
the Directors were classified as a separate allocation
of share premium within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Following the implementation of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the Directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China have Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) or United States dollars (“US$”) as their
functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of the PRC Subsidiaries is Renminbi.
As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China,
Renminbi is used as the functional currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below:

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2015 was RMB304,440,000 (2014:
RMB181,494,000). Further details are contained in
note 20 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
gooawill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses and deductible
temporary differences at 31 December 2015 was
RMB93,356,000 (2014: RMB56,925,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2015 was RMB112,636,000 (2014: RMB99,232,000).
Further details are contained in note 24 to the
financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Bonus point liabilities

The amount of revenue attributable to the credits
award earned by the customers of the Group’s
loyalty point programme is estimated based on the
fair value of the credits awarded and the expected
redemption rate. The expected redemption rate is
estimated by considering the number of the credits
that will be available for redemption in the future
after allowing for credits which are not expected to
be redeemed. The carrying amount of bonus point
liabilities at 31 December 2015 was RMB35,151,000
(2014: RMB31,282,000).

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB3,934 million. The Directors have prepared
these financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liability position
because the Directors expected that the Group
will generate sufficient cash inflows from the sales
proceeds on the operation of department stores
and supermarkets, and will successfully refinance
its current interest-bearing debts by various means
including but not limited to renewing its existing
loans, utilizing its unused bank facilities, and issuing
new bonds, to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

—  Department store segment
—  Supermarket segment

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, share of loss of a joint venture,
dividend income, fair value gains/(losses) from the
Group’s financial instruments, fair value gains on
disposal available-for-sale listed investments, gains
on disposal of unquoted current investments, stated
at cost as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude the Group’s investment
in a joint venture, investment in an associate,
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, long-term time deposits at banks,
tax recoverable, amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder, structured deposits, derivative financial
instruments, cash and cash equivalents, assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude short-term financing notes
interest-bearing bank borrowings, derivative financial
instruments, tax payable, liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified as held for sale, deferred
tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended
31 December 2015
BZ2015512AALEE

Segment revenue ik LN \
Sales to external customers HINBRPHHEE
Segment results DEEE
Reconciliation: Hk -

Interest and dividend income and
unallocated gains

Corporate and other unallocated expenses

Share of loss of a joint venture

Finance costs

ME BB EBARRD
g

D R EMAD R

NERELEER

Profit before tax BR % A& 1
Segment assets IPHEE
Reconciliation: #Hik }
Corporate and other unallocated assets R AR EMADEEE
Assets of a disposal group classified ERIEEXBENIER
as held for sale BAREAE
Total assets BEE
Segment liabilities PBEE
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies ~ A R Et AN B A (E
Liabilities directly associated with REERERERR
the assets classified as held for sale HENBE
Total liabilities Baf
Other segment information Htta HEH
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 72 &) } E & 5 B 78
Total depreciation and amortisation HERBHEH
Provision/(write-back of provision) WG ERE
for slow-moving inventories (BtaRm)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

nE - BERRERERER

Capital expenditure BARX
Corporate and other unallocated amounts A &l & 2tk 7 B 7 E
Total capital expenditure * BERRL

REDAEFR (

Department

=)

n

store  Super-market

BEE
RMB’000
AR®T R

B

RMB’ 000
ARBTR

Total

@t
RMB’000
AR¥TR

1,623,725

2,544,180

4,167,905

676,162

9,303,281

2,723,719

112,181

1,394,762

787,682

264,445 76,495

847

33,000

2,676,971

(546)

292,846

788,343

66,559
(122,536)
(2,991)

(33,768)

695,607

10,698,043

1,517,354

26,400

12,241,797

3,511,401
3,507,919

4,769

7,024,089

340,940
4,450

345,390

301

33,000

2,969,817

10,539

2,980,356



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.

HZE2015F12A31ALEFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. RESWEH (K)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2014 store Super-market Total
HZ2014F12A31ALLFE BEE i @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue 2EHBA
Sales to external customers HINBEPHIHE 1,702,744 2,573,540 4,276,284
Segment results DMEE 822,719 135,752 958,471
Reconciliation: Hik
Interest and dividend income and FERBREBARE D
unallocated gains i 187,558
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2 & & E Al R 7 BEF X2 (127,135)
Share of loss of a joint venture PERELEBR (49,426)
Finance costs Bl & A (49,201)
Profit before tax R 150 A1 8 ) 920,267
Segment assets SPHEE 7,439,677 1,282,561 8,722,238
Reconciliation: #k - .
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~~ RAIREAMASBEE 2,570,594
Investment in a joint venture AELERE 237,851
Investment in an associate NGB 45,166
Assets of a disposal group classified ERIEEXBOER
as held for sale REREEE 26,400
Total assets BEE 11,602,249
Segment liabilities FBEE 2,502,685 642,208 3,144,893
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities A A R At K D fic & & 3,255,364
Liabilities directly associated with HEEGEEAERR
the assets classified as held for sale HENEE 4,769
Total liabilities maf 6,405,026
Other segment information Hitt o BEH
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH 257,566 70,772 328,338
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 72 &) }2 E 4t & 5 B 78 4,476
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREBEAT 332,814
(Write-back of provision)/provision
for slow-moving inventories %%g% (BERE) (970) 1,688 718
Impairment of goodwil HERBEER 25,000 = 25,000
Capital expenditure BARRY 583,024 57,476 640,500
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 2 & } &4 & 7 B 78 5,277
Total capital expenditure * BERRY 645,777
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to external
customers, less allowances for returns and trade
discounts; commission income from concessionaire
sales, net of sales taxes and surcharges; and
other revenue that arises in the ordinary course of
business.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

RETHER ()

i & & B
AEEMRBKRAREFEAMES - M
AEERBFRBHEELRTEAM

IEFEFNEHR
RAFEEIWEE—FFRARIEH THY
—HEP R HE G AR B A10%3K A
J: o

A

WARAEESIIBEFPHEEMZE
Yo w0 WOk TORVR & & B 5 I Ik 4
KEFFEEHEMS AR HED
RS : AR —REBBRETELDN
HA e

WASHTEFIIT

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARETIT
Sales of goods — direct sales HmEE —EEHEE 2,754,409 2,790,087
Commission income from REFFELHERS
concessionaire sales (Note) WA (KT 7E) 1,278,120 1,359,633
Total turnover e 4,032,529 4,149,720
Rental income e WA 133,987 120,272
Provision of food and beverage R E R AR 7
service 1,389 6,292
Total revenue FAL N 4,167,905 4,276,284
Note: Bisr

The commission income from concessionaire sales is
analysed as follows:

HHEBEERSRAS DT :

2015 2014
—E-RE =T e
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®F AR®EF T
Gross revenue from B EEHE S IIE
concessionaire sales 7,807,255 8,139,055

Commission income from FHELEHEEMAS WA

concessionaire sales 1,278,120 1,359,633
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Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31ALEFE
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. HEW AR Wz
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
Other income Ht g A
Fee income from suppliers KRB R E A 534,379 528,449
Interest income F B U A 47,900 127,919
Dividend income from available- K E Rt HE FH
for-sale listed investments ZEBREBA - 3,301
Subsidy income GETON 17,461 22,523
Others EHAh 5,094 5,336
604,834 687,528
Gains U &
Gains on disposal of unquoted e BB AFTEMIE LT
current investments stated FEHRIR B s
at cost - 1,736
Gains on disposal of investments EEZRAFEFEAH
at fair value through BB ABERN
profit or loss RE W 1,430 -
Gains on bargain purchase BRELRE KEREMBA R
recognised in other income Wz R 89 3 B W 2
and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss 95 -
Fair value gains, net: N ERE - FE
Available-for-sale listed AHEE EWIRE
investments (transfer from (E=EFHEAN)
equity on disposal) - 31,300
Derivative instruments PTESRT A
— transactions not —NFF &
qualifying as hedges EBEIRD - 607
1,525 33,643
606,359 721,171
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R 2R MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

8. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses mainly include impairment of
goodwill, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, utility expenses, advertising and E
promotion expenses, loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, office expenses, maintenance
costs, travelling expenses, entertainment expenses,

8. HMpX

property tax and government surcharges and other

miscellaneous expenses.

9. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on short-term
financing notes

Interest on bank borrowings
wholly payable within
five years

Less: Interest capitalised

HWAXTZERREREEE ¥
% BB REREREERS -
TEEER VX BEIAREBNE
EFE MAERAX HERREMNE
A-ZIRE XBHRGE
FEHS o0 E AR AN E A FE TR S ©

KERL

BEM &K

9. BIE KA
BMEKRARDHTMT :
2015 2014
—E-FF & — PO £F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AREF T
EHRESNE

8,247 10,957

BARAFALIBERE

RITEZAF B

92,720 78,612
R BEAEF B (67,199) (40,368)
33,768 49,201




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Provision for slow-moving
inventories

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land
premiums

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Impairment of goodwill*

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment”

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and
equipment*

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases:

Land and buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

Staff costs including Directors’
and chief executive’s
remuneration (Note 11):

Wages, salaries and bonuses
Pension scheme contributions
Other social security costs

Foreign exchange differences,
net

Dividend income from
available-for-sale listed
investments

Gains on disposal of investments
at fair value through

profit or loss

Gains on disposal of unquoted
current investments stated
at cost

Gains on bargain purchase
recognised in other income
and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Fair value gains, net:
Available-for-sale listed

investments (transfer from
equity on disposal)
Derivative instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Share of loss of a

joint venture

*
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The impairment of goodwill and impairment of property,

plant and equipment are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

10. BR %t Al i

AEENRBIDENEMR, GEA) T

FIE=SER
2015 2014
—E-RE —E—mF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
k=3 AR¥T R ARETIT
2,413,697 2,438,674
301 718
17 330,484 318,062
18 11,843 11,689
19 3,063 3,063
20 - 25,000
17 33,000 =
10,882 9,240
118,308 08,196
2,904 2,936
448,839 435,062
61,467 58,155
99,927 89,515
19,909 13,448
7 - (3,301)
7 (1,430) =
7 - (1,736)
7 (95) =
7 - (31,300)
7 389 (607)
2,991 49,426

BRI EEEEYE  BEREERE

EHBEHEER

WasRmy [
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31AEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 1. EE RI1TEHAR M
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for RIE _E AR B & B (A BHER ) 55383(1)
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, (a),(b),(c), NIE M~ Al &I E FE280 (EEH
383(1)(a),(b),(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies MEEEE)  ESkaERNAEHHEN
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Regulation FM{E S HWENT ¢

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors), is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-EF —E-MF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARETTT
Fees we 585 536
Other emoluments: H b B
Salaries, allowances and e EMREDH G
benefits in kind 4,406 4,373
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFHEIH K 114 100
4,520 4,473
5,105 5,009
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) HZIHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive REBHRB Y NGB IERNTES
directors during the year were as follows: MEST :
2015 2014
—B-&HF —T-mE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARB TR ARBTT
Mr. Lin Zhijun MEELEE 195 189
Mr. Zhang Weijiong o 4 M0 5 A 195 189
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming Rk —I8 5 A& 195 158
585 536
There were no other emoluments payable to the A B R EAM I FE N 48 8 N SE 1T
independent non-executive directors during the SENEMINE -
year.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

MEERITHARTH (&)

(b) BITEE FHTEERTHAEL

the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees Faae - 311 BKE remuneration
BeE  REWANGE sHEMRR HMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR%T=xn ARETR
2015 20154
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang Bt - 1,054 19 1,073
Mr. Tao Qingrong P B 48 4L D - 2,017 15 2,032
Mr. Yu Yaoming MERLAE - 1,140 80 1,220
- 4,211 114 4,325
Non-executive director: FRTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John — JSEERAE 4 - 195 - 195
- 4,406 114 4,520
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
inkind  contributions Total
Fees e 2B £IRE  remuneration
e REMF &= TR FHAa s
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRE AR®ETx ARET T
2014 20144
Executive directors: HTESR:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang BREZsa kA - 1,024 13 1,037
Mr. Tao Qingrong © el B 6 4 O - 1,902 13 1,915
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai @ BB A - 118 - 118
Mr. Yu Yaoming HEL:Fit - 1,140 74 1,214
- 4,184 100 4,284
Non-executive director: FHTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, Jonn BB T A& = 189 = 189
- 4,373 100 4,473

(i)  Mr. Tao Qingrong is also the chief executive
of the Group.

(i) Mr. Fung Hiu Lai resigned as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 11
March 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

() MEXREETEZARENITR
R o

(i) IHEERR ST A N2014F3A11H
HEARRAITE SRR -

REBHRAYEEERTHARBER
(7] 7 T3 A ] 357 B RO 22 Bk
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2014: three) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2014: two) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the
year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e EMEREDMH D

benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000

ARBEEZ—FETT
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 ARB—FEZ—ZE
ARE—BRETET

12. TV & = & & Fr i

REBHE  AATaHESEHTIRE
E(2014F : 3REF)HFMFBRA L
BiEE11 o EgpoR (20145 : 28) BE T~ =
EEMTRITHER - KRAREE A
SHBHET :

2015 2014
—E—FHE —T—OF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BT R AR¥ET T
2,197 2,164

87 78

2,284 2,242

FIBREZRRFTRAHE RS MES
BN BRFE T 51 B 0 B RE 7T 51 R -

Number of employees

BER
2015 2014
- —T—NF
2 2
2 2




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Under the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT Law”), the
income tax rate became 25% starting from 1 January
2008. Therefore, provision for the PRC income tax
has been made at the applicable income tax rate of
25% (2014: 25%) on the assessable profits of the
PRC Subsidiaries.

Current — PRC corporate income ~ BIHi— & A rp B 1> # B 15 71

tax charge for the year =3
Deferred (Note 24) BEIETLIA (fat24)
Total tax charge for the year FAFIBERAZ BT

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

13. T 5%

AEBANERBELERAEERKE QA
REEM LK EMERDEERMELESK
MEHEANMAER - ARERAR
BIBABMETEMEN ARERAH
HIR Y R B BB ERTUA -

ARARB/RFASESEMRINEH A
Al e

RIEREARLME ([FE]) BEMB
PR ([FEEMFRIE] - B200841
B1R BB E 525% » B It - ¥
B B} B8 A A FE R BE PR E B TS B R
25% (20144F : 25% ) 31T B AT 15 5 48
f& o

2015 2014
=F-1% —FAmF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
207,390 257,692
(1,989) 17,004
205,401 274,696

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS
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Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12 A31HILEE
13.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 13. 5% (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax Bk 5 B i

Tax at the statutory tax rate of BIETE M E25%AT E IR

25% (2014: 25%) (20144 : 25%)
Expenses not deductible for tax A FIFH A F 2
Losses attributable to a DIEEELENERE

joint venture

Effect of withholding tax on the TEFN B & R B B A 7 Al

distributable profits of the PRC i A '

Subsidiaries

Tax losses not recognised RERBIAESE

Tax charge at the Group’s BEAREEBERTEAED
effective rate RIERAX

The share of tax credit attributable to a joint venture
amounting to RMB186,000 (2014: RMB1,138,000)
is included in “Share of loss of a joint venture” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

BARB RE KRS M B AR EM A E
BDAHE [BOX TE 1 R 51 5 A9 BR B A0 s A AR
ERAHRIARS R ERR R EOR
AR EERIT -

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

695,607 920,267
173,902 230,067
14,343 9,316
748 12,357
i3
13,057 14,382
3,351 8,574
205,401 274,696

DihE Bt ERER % ARE186,0007T
(20144 : ARR¥1,138,0007T) B BIEE
HRARBERZDEAECENEEF -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015

14. DIVIDENDS

Interim — HK$4 cents
(2014: HK$8 cents)
per ordinary share

Proposed final — HK$7 cents
(2014: HK$9 cents)
per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The amount which the PRC Subsidiaries can legally
distribute by way of dividend is determined by
reference to the distributable profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE
14. IR &
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R AREEF T
R HR — IR AR B AR B 4L
(20144 : BEEsl)
80,535 156,274
PR EE R B —E B
RGBT
(20144 : BHEEAl) 142,332 174,244
222,867 330,518

it M EERE ©

accordance with the accounting rules and regulations

in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”).

REZHRIKERAREEA
FAEGLEFARBBEILAE

FENBARAEBRESENK £
BO2ZERBETPEARSFTRAGHR
B R B TE B 7 R 3R BT IR R B9 R 0 U

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

15.

16.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB480,288,000 (2014: RMB634,065,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,435,780,337 (2014: 2,472,022,956) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The PRC Subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant government authorities for their employees
in Mainland China and contribute to these plans
based on a certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The
contributions to these plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when incurred.

15.

16.

BAREERESEARGS
AR 3 A

EREXGEANDERFET QA
TEBREFEBEAEBEGLGENARE
480,288,00070 (2014%F : AR ¥
634,065,0007T) F1 & A E 317 L @M%
hn#E S5 #2,435,780,337 /% (20144 :
2,472,022,956/%) 5t & o

B £2015%12 3310 &2014%F 12731
ALLFE  ARBRBTHEBRAE
EEERENESTR -

BERKEF
REFEEGRZEZRORTE  TEMBEQ
AE2EREHRFENRE - 2EPE
MEBAREEHAEZEEENELRAK
B HI& 1% X (& 80 PR E 30 (& 13 B0 1 25 35 B
SHEMETELLPIFERKSE - LS
T HERFEBLHAARE R ARRE
REE B A FERN A EBRKER

Bk Bt 3R5N - NEREY BB E L E M
BAREBAMK - MZFFEOHRR
BERBAREEEAFAS -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014 and
at 1 January 2015:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2015, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Addtions
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)
Depreciation provided during the year
Impairment
Transfers
Disposal

At 31 December 2015, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 December 2015:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

20155127318

R2014E12A31R
R2015%1A1A
HAR(AE
ZHMERAEER

REFE

R01651A18
RR2iHE
RREERE

RE

WE-BMEAR K5

ERRNE

RERRE

a4

RE

R016512A318 -
RR2HNE
REEER

2015512531 A

RAZfA(E
SATERREER

FEFE

17. 9% - BERRKRE

Renovation Furniture

Land and and leasehold Motor and office  Construction

buildings improvements Machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
BRR

THEET  BHREE HE RE BOZRE HRIR @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR%TR  AR%Tx  AR%Tz  ARETR
5,356,314 805,935 547,759 11,646 168,303 1,109,332 7,999,289
(854,394) (300,705) (278,625) (8,039) (108,888) - (1,550,651)
4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1,109,332 6,448,638
4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1,109,332 6,448,638
455,381 21,679 31,982 1,642 18,666 1,119,224 1,654,574
341,719 13,049 29,556 1,134 3 86,132 471,967
(155,933) (98,366) (50,913) (1,875) (22,897) - (330,484)
- (12,258) (20,742) - - - (33,000)
972,518 (8,503) 85,209 - 5,338 (1,054,562) -
(9,735) (1,577) (370) (241) (416) - (12,339)
6,105,870 424,754 343,856 4,267 60,483 1,260,126 8,199,356
7,113,173 832,958 693,626 13,585 188,597 1,260,126 10,102,065
(1,007,303) (408,204) (349,770) (9,318) (128,114) - (1,902,709)
6,105,870 424,754 343,856 4,267 60,483 1,260,126 8,199,356

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

17. 9% - B ER&H ()

Renovation Furniture
Land and and leasehold Motor and office ~ Construction
buildings improvements Machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
BHR
THREF  BERES B& RE BAERE ERIE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTT  ARBTr ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2014 20145128318
At 1 January 2014 201451 A1R
Cost or valuation HA(EE 5,349,183 693,280 535,376 12,085 157,214 637,110 7,384,248
Accumulated depreciation ZINERKEER
and impairment (697,764) (224,965) (232,394) (6,836) (90,683) - (1,252,642)
Net carrying amount BEFE 4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606
At 1 January 2014, net of 201451518 -
acoumulated depreciation RREHE
and impariment R EERE 4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606
Additions AE 5,991 42,735 5911 497 12,551 578,092 645,777
Depreciation provided during the year £ ER R (156,698) (87,540) (48,476) (2,044) (23,304) - (818,062)
Transfers g5 1711 90,373 9,209 - 4577 (105,870) =
Disposals RE (503) (8,653) (492) (%) (940) - (10,683)
At 31 December 2014, net of 20145128318 -
acoumulated depreciation R EiiE 4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1100332 6,448,638
and impaiment RABER
At 31 December 2014: R2014E12A318 :
Cost or valuation HA(EE 5,356,314 805,935 547,759 11,646 168,303 1,109,332 7,999,289
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
and impairment RAEER (854,394) (300,705) (278,625) 8,039) (108,888) - (1,550,651
Net carrying amount FEFE 4,501,920 505,230 269,134 3,607 59,415 1,109,332 6,448,638

At 31 December 2015, the application for
transferring the land use right certificate to property
ownership certificate for the Group’s land and

M2015%12A31H - KEENMEAEBE
AR #402,596,0007T (20144 : AR
418,818,0007T) W) £ M iEF R B

buildings amounting to RMB402,596,000 (2014:
RMB418,818,000) was still in progress.

FrE R -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

19.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

18. Bttt HEZES

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1BEREREE
Additions NE
Government grant related HEEM I ES
to prepaid land premiums B 8 B9 BT BE R
Amortisation capitalised FEHEFEERNLBYE -
as property, plant and = K 5%
equipment for the year
Recognised as expenses TRABFEMXZ

during the year
Carrying amount at 31 December 712 H31H K ERE &

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and
is held under a long-term lease.

At 31 December 2015, the application for acquiring
the land use right certificate for the Group’s land
amounting to RMB402,900,000 (2014 Nil) was still in
progress.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Lease agreement buyouts HEHREE
Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1E M ERmE
Recognised as expenses BRAEFEMRX

during the year
Carrying amount at 31 December #1231 H M EREE

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payment to old tenants to buy out lease
agreements, and were amortised over the lease terms
on the straight-line basis.

19.

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

872,334 899,433
853,815 =
- (1,748)

(33,525) (13,662)
(11,843) (11,689)
1,680,781 872,334

HETHERFBRA  AREBHE
HBA -

MR2015%F12A31H @ AEENMEAEBE
A R #402,900,0007T (20144 : ) &)
T RS ERBAREE -

HitRFEAE
2015 2014
=F-IF —ZT—NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

38,349 41,412
(3,063) (3,063)
35,286 38,349

& % B i 15 AN S B ) R P A 50UA
BEHEEwZ  YRESKEZEHEHR
BN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31AEFE
20. GOODWILL 20. &
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2014: M2014F1 /18 :
Cost B 7R 206,494
Net carrying amount BREFE 206,494
Cost at 1 January 2014, M2014F1 A1E KR ¢
net of accumulated impairment MR RETBE 206,494
Impairment during the year (Note) BN BB (B 2F) (25,000)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31H 181,494
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 8318
Cost B AR 206,494
Accumulated impairment REHREERE (25,000)
Net carrying amount REVFE 181,494
Cost at 1 January 2015, 201561 A1HK A -
net of accumulated impairment R RFHRE 181,494
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) U E& I & A &) (47:236) 122,946
Cost and net carrying amount M20156F12A831H
at 31 December 2015 B I BR B 304,440
At 31 December 2015: R2015%F12H318
Cost DN 329,440
Accumulated impairment RETREERE (25,000)
Net carrying amount REVFE 304,440



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the department store cash-generating
unit for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 13.5% (2014: 15%).

The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period
from the end of the reporting period is 3% for all
years. This growth rate is below the average growth
rate of the retail industry for the past 10 years. Senior
management of the Company believes that using a
lower growth rate is a more conservative and reliable
choice for the purpose of this impairment testing.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the department store cash-generating unit for
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

Store revenue:

the bases used to determine the future earnings
potential are average historical sales and expected
growth rates of the retail market in Mainland China.

Gross margins:

the basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Expenses:

the basic factors used to determine the values
assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other
expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions
reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating
expenses at an acceptable level.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

20. F & (&)

&R AR
BRERAHELENEEEIEERE
ERSELEBMEREBERE -ReEEE
BNWMAIRESENREFERAEETE
BT e hitEzes eBEsfERE
AEFMERERFHENMKEEZ
HHEESREBEA -FEFERESRE
TEORI 3 B A9 BE IR 2 £13.5% (20144 -
15%) °

P A TR S MR L
BRI B 2 A B 030 B T B AT
(28 5 % 53% - HHREERNBEI0F
TEIEHTYREL AR ABRE
1A AR - 8 A 1 A R B
BRI T 5 JD R R < R B S 5 -

RR AN E2015412A318 &
2014F12A31HBEERERELESE
iz o UG EEE RN 2R ER8

BRI -

BEERA :

RREERKBAENNELEATHE
EHE RSO R ERNEEDS0E
B -

EH)K :

ANErTEEENEREENEERERE
BEFEN—FAMERNFHERE
EFEFT R A M IERT TSR ML o

R :

AREEREEEMNERARZSE TK
A HERXKEMFAS - DETEE
R A (BB [ bR iB E AR Bp o B 1 B A4
AR BB R S I AT IR SR o
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

21.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Discount rate:

the discount rate used is after tax and reflects
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the
cash-generating unit. In determining an appropriate
discount rate for the unit, regard has been given to
the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the
current year.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the
department store cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value, including goodwill, of the cash-generating unit
to materially exceed the recoverable amount.

Note:

As at 31 December 2014, as the progress of extension
and renovation of existing property of Yangzhou Fengxiang
Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Yangzhou Fengxiang”) did not meet
management’s expectation, management recognised an
impairment charge of RMB25,000,000 against the carrying
amount of RMB56,720,000.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets DIEEEFE
Goodwill on acquisition W ig 2 B
Loan to a joint venture HEEPEER
As at 31 December YM2H31H

20. &5 & (&)

21.

R E R ()
BEE -

FIAMBAXRERE IRREEEHE
ELRSBUBARBRNMGET - IEBE
NEBEAEMRRXE EEEEHFE
EAMBEREER -

BREFHHBE
EHBEEReELBEMEREREL
AEfEE  EEEMRRE LR ETAERRR
AREANSEEH I EHFEREES
BUmMEEE(BREFE) EBREATK
O & 58 -

Hiaz -

R2014F12A831H AR B MEFEHESR
RAR ([HMEH]) MIEEZRRERED
¥R ECEERES TREErATHERAE
AR #56,720,000c g B ERRE AR
25,000,0007T °

EELERE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBF T
- 102,256
- 105,595
- 207,851
- 30,000
- 237,851




22.

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R 2R Y 5

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31HILEFE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 2. AIHHERE
INVESTMENTS
2015 2014
—E-FHF —E—mOF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Unlisted equity investments, FELTIRERE - REKAFE
at cost 110 110
Total non-current available- ERB AL ERERTE
for-sale investments 110 110

As at 31 December 2015, certain unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of RMB110,000
(2014: RMB110,000) were stated at cost less
impairment. The Directors are of the opinion that their
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Rental prepayments A

Prepayment for acquisition g = PNCIR L B

of a subsidiary

23.

Prepayment for purchases of land B8 & £ b K AE F T8 508

and buildings

MR2015%12A31E - FHEEAB AR
110,0007T (20144 : AR #110,0007T)
B FE TR IR A LA 0 R JRUE 18 RO B AR
R -BEERRBZERENAFEEET

BERISERTE -

REAFESRIE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

24,752 21,982

- 20,000
51,039 572,942
75,791 614,924
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Losses available

for offsetting Loss on
against future disposal
taxable profits  of assets
THEHERR  KEBEE

ERHERNER

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRL

24, EIEF I8

REBHRENETCRBEERBENE
I :

ELEHREBEEE
Accrued Bonus
rental point  Available-
expenses liabilities for-sale
Eite 28 investments Others? Total
Bx EBAAR UHRLERE Higo @zt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETR ARET:x

Gross deferred tax assets M2014%1 718

at 1 January 2014 EERBEELE 8,395 13,396 8,199 11,575 448 12,476 54,489
Deferred tax charged to equity &Rzt AEZH

during the year BEREHE - - - (448) - (448)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERETA/ (H1B)

to the statement of profitor WK MELFK B

loss during the year (Note 13 (#i£13) 3,287 2,747 (3,754) - (351) 2,884
Gross deferred tax assets M2014%12A31R

at 31 December 2014 and R2015F1 A1 &

1 January 2015 BRFBEERSE 11,682 14,351 10,946 7,821 - 12,125 56,925
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEHELT - 4,297 - - - 4,297
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERETA/ (H1B)

to the statement of profit or MR HEEFHE

loss during the year (Note 13)  (#1:£13) 30,354 (3,112 2,567 967 - 1,358 32,134
Gross deferred tax assets 201551283184

at 31 December 2015 BRHEEELR 42,036 11,239 17,810 8,788 - 13,483 93,356
Note: Bier

()  Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused
by pre-operating expenses, accrued expenses and
inventory provision.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB112,636,000 (2014: RMB99,232,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits, as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

() HtbEZBRELENFX  BIREXK
FEEBSHNERER

EHRBEABR—ZRAFRNEENA
REHNARER ZFNESEAEAR
#112,636,0007C (2014 AR &
99,232,0007T) KB BB K ER HE
EHIBEEE  AAEEAZESTHEAEERD
MEBARBEEE —BiME  WAEFT
SELARF AN AREINHIEESE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 24, EIER1E (48)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
EWEEKE  Withholding
AEEEW taxes® Others® Total
AFERE BB Hp @
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Gross deferred tax liabilities 201451 A1B K
at 1 January 2014 BEHEaERR 365,164 30,526 78,512 474,202
Realisation during the year FNEER - (25,605) - (25,605)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  ER@A /(%) &
the statement of profit or loss RRERIR (Hf£13)
during the year (Note 13) (15,455) 14,382 20,961 19,888
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2014%F12H318
at 31 December 2014 and K&2015F1 A1 R K
at 1 January 2015 EXRBEERSE 349,709 19,303 99,473 468,485
Realisation during the year FREER - (15,750) - (15,750)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WrEN B A A 78,350 - - 78,350
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to R/ (1K) Yizs &
the statement of profit or loss MR B (f2#13)
during the year (Note 13) (12,267) 13,057 29,355 30,145
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2015F12H31H
at 31 December 2015 HMETEHAERBRR 415,792 16,610 128,828 561,230

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
Notes:

(0

(i)

For presentation purposes,

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% according to
managements’ best estimation. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will, in the foreseeable
future, distribute earnings with an aggregate amount
of temporary differences of RMB1,182,984,000
(2014: RMB921,840,000) associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised at 31 December
2015.

Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused

by capitalised interest and accelerated tax deduction
of property, plant and equipment.

certain deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

24. FEERE ()
MBS BE S K ()
Kt -

(i)

(ii

BEJBEME

BB EMERE - EP BRI
MINE B ERINEIRE E TSRS
BHRZ10%TEMF - it R E B20084F1
A18 # 4% @A K2007F12831H
?ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂfﬂﬂqi@éﬁi?\\&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ALEEEF BB HE - A REE
TR ARTENB c MAKEME *E}F
EEEMAEGTERMNE A% -

i $E./A5’¢E¢.Wi‘|ﬂﬁziﬁ’]5ﬁ§
AJFA200841 A1 A #E AT & | 9K K iR
BB -

20155128318 » BEERAETER
4% & KT B A R4 7] B R A 45 R A AT
NIRRT EAARK1,182,984,000
7t (20144 : A R#921,840,0007T) #Y
BEWRE  HETREEEEENET
ISR aEdR FHER -

HipE EREANCH B8 B R Z 8
K - B TR ISR A A

ETELERAEEER

BEERGEMBRRREKE - U TR

MK Z

HE U AREE R REN RS

BRETT 2 DT

Net deferred tax assets
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

RER B M ISR R R

=y Jﬁkiﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁr%ﬁ

Rix & BB AR Ri’%ﬁﬁw
REER TH & EFE

2015 2014

— —FnmF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBETT
91,727 54,197
(559,600) (465,757)
(467,873) (411,560)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.INVENTORIES

26.

Store merchandise, at cost or net  JE#i78 @ IR A
realisable value
Low value consumables

EEHEm

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB15,340,000 (2014:
RMB17,813,000) were carried at fair value less costs
to sell.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on a cash basis except
for certain bulk sales of merchandise which are credit
sales. The credit terms offered to customers are
generally one month.

None of the balances of the trade receivables at each
reporting date is either past due or impaired.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables at each
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within one month —@AR

A R A (E

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015

25. 7 E

26.

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE
2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREEF T
321,989 322,044
980 1,011
322,969 323,055

M2015F12A831H  AEBEREEA
A R #15,340,0007T (20145 : AR ¥
17,818,00070) M1FE + HERAFER
SHEK A FRETE °

FE W & 5 TR
REFTARERBEREEHEN &
EEMAHENRRSEERT - BT
EFMEESR—RA—EA -

RERE B RNAERKE SRS H
WEBH - ELFRE -

SEHEKRESRRREZEY
OoMREBRITAT

2015 2014
—F-1% —FHmF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
9,781 12,164
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Value-added tax recoverable

Prepayments to suppliers

Other receivables from suppliers

Prepaid rental and deposits

POS receivables

Interest receivables

Prepayment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests

Other deposits and receivables

AT 45 3 (B 7

[r) {£ /8 7 TR SR 0R

1F) % 7 L b B W R 0R
BNEE RS
POSJE Y kI8

JE W 2

Ust I 2 B A 2 5ROR

Hiizm & R BUHR

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

28. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

Structured deposits in licensed
banks in the PRC, at amortised
cost

R E AR K52
RITOEBMET
DA SHPX N5 &

These structured deposits of 2014 have terms of
less than one year and have expected annual rates
of return up to 5.9%. Pursuant to the underlying
contracts or notices, these structured deposits are
capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.

27. T RIE ~

BT Rk H MR

by |
2015 2014
—E—FE —Z—OF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
4,934 7,081
15,774 22,910
124,989 108,014
51,006 34,280
31,103 31,604
412 8,903
60 -
48,079 24,838
276,357 237,630

PREELEBMIRE - 5FA LS
FRAP R B A BT A I S R RO R Y

FEWRIHB R -

EBRMEER
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETx AREETF T
- 115,000

2014 F M EBIEFHEBR DR —F I
TSRS AEL.9%MEFE - RIEEKER
EMNAY  ELEBUEEZNEEAZ

RAHY



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE
29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. [ERFEEBYNZIRER
AND RESTRICTED CASH 5%
2015 2014
—F-1% —THmF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR ARET T
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 504,393 534,881
Time deposits EHFR 532,406 1,677,667
1,036,799 2,212,548
Less: Restricted cash with maturity 38 : —SF R EIHI# 2R
date within one year EBEe (132,872) =
Restricted cash with maturity —FUENFR
date over one year BE¥Ee (104,725) (227,580)
Long-term time deposits FRIRITH R A
at banks TEHATFE R (170,141) (162,304)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 629,061 1,822,664
The Group’s cash and bank balances and time AREBNRSHRE HEHNIR S RIBITHAE
deposits at each reporting date are denominated in R EBERR T EBTE
the following currencies:
2015 2014
—E-IF —F-0mF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

RMB AR 941,127 1,970,079
Us$ ETT 74,682 205,307
HK$ BT 19,073 37,162
SGD N3 T 1,917 =

1,036,799 2,212,548

£ GL02 LHOJ3Y IVNNNY E [B7 5 B stz A3 LINM SONITTOH TVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIIAS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

29.

30.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between three months and five
years depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits approximate
to their fair values.

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations
issued by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group was required to deposit
bank balances (or through issuing the letter of bank
guarantee to deposit) in the Group’s designated
accounts, which amount was no less than 30% of
the balance of advances from customers for sales
of prepaid cards. As at 31 December 2015, certain
of the Group’s cash amounting to RMB104,725,000
(2014: RMB100,396,000) represents the above
balances in the Group’s designated accounts.

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s
cash amounting to RMB132,872,000 (2014:
RMB127,184,000) was restricted to use to secure
bank loan facilities granted to the Group as disclosed
in note 31.

SHORT-TERM FINANCING NOTES

On 7 August 2015, the Group has issued its short-
term financing notes at par value of RMB500 million
to domestic institutional investors in the PRC. The
nominal interest rate is 3.85% per annum and the
effective interest rate is 4.16% per annum. The term
of the financing notes was 366 days from the date of
issuance.

29.

30.

ReERRESEYNZIRER
&% (%)

RITHERBIEE A RTHE R R
FBHNE EMERE=ZEAZAEH
BA%E REAKENERESFRM
E o WRE B E B F SRR R EREUA
B RITEBRFARGERT -RER
ReEEY THEFOEEREEZER
FEMEE -

RIE A I AR LA 3 i 55 2698 % A 4R
BEH AEETTFANBBESIE
TREAEREXTLVREERNE
TR TE B EEI0% N EEIETE
BR P - R2015%12A31H * A& B A
R #104,725,0007T (2014%F : A R #&
100,396,0007T) HEBE S EFALKE
HIIEERRFE o

N2015F12A318 - "&EEFB AR K
132,872,0007C (20144F : AR ¥
127,184,00070) HEB & & FRIR1TH
PRFAEBRITEROER  XLRK
FESTHEE -

HHIRE S

M20156F8A7H + AEEETEAEERE
BARBS00EBTHEHRMES TR
NHEIBEIREE - BEFHEL3.85% °
BEERERRZ416% © AR E H W HIR
B %% 2 B#£51366K °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR ETE

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31HIEFE
31.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 31. 5T R RITHE K
BORROWINGS
2015 2014
—E-AF —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARE T ARBTF T
Bank loans: RITER
Secured B ER 417,635 391,731
Unsecured R 2,051,230 2,202,488
2,468,865 2,594,219
Bank loans repayable: JEEZERITER
Within one year or on demand — & LA A 5 B BF 1,591,115 299,887
Over one year but —FAEERFEA
within two years 877,750 737,953
Over two years but MENEEBERFER
within five years - 1,656,379
2,468,865 2,594,219
Total bank borrowings RITERAARE 2,468,865 2,594,219
Less: Portion classified as current  J& : DA RSB BRI D
liabilities (1,591,115) (299,887)
Long-term portion REIE 877,750 2,294,332
Bank loans bear interest at fixed rates or floating IRITERIRBEEHN R LR FENARAFE o
rates.
The Group’s bank loans bore effective interest rates HR2015F12 A1 A A EEMEITERE
from 1.9% to 4.9% per annum as at 31 December WE MK BA1.9%%E4.9% K% R20144E12
2015 and 1.9% to 2.6% per annum as at A31HHA1.9%E2.6% °
31 December 2014.
As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s MN2015F12H831H ' AE B A R
cash amounting to RMB132,872,000 (2014: 132,872,000 (20144 : AR ¥
RMB127,184,000) was restricted to use to secure the 127,184,00070) W E¥ E £ FNRER1TH
bank loan facilities granted to the Group. NIF P AREBIRITEROER -
The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at RNEBER LIRS HEIRE 2R 1718 RR
each reporting date are denominated in the following T5| gk (g :
currencies:
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—MmF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR ARBT T
RMB AREE 800,000 -
us$ ETT 1,204,887 2,091,421
HKS$ BT 463,978 502,798

2,468,865 2,594,219
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

32. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

33.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables at
each reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within three months

Over three months but
withinsix months

Over six months but
within one year

Over one year

=@AR
@A EEBXERAR

NEAREE—FR

—FUF

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of up to 60 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Payables to suppliers’ employees
Deposits from suppliers
Value-added taxes
Other tax payable
Payable for capital expenditure
Payable for staff costs
Bonus point liabilities
Advances from customers
Payable for acquisition of
a joint venture
Amount due to an associate
Payable for acquisition of
non-controlling interests

Interest payable

Dividends payable

Other payables

JE 1 e 75 (B 8 3R
HEBRS

BED

H B A IR

e B AR X
FERT B TR
gB8ENARE

PN HIA

Wi —HeELERMNHIA

JE Bt &2 2 R SRR
WiE IR A i 25 B N SR IR

JE& A FLB
e AR S
H Al &S R

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-

bearing.

NRENEZRERENRE

REREDBENESRARENZE
REEENERAFET -

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BT ARBFIT
945,780 943,263
91,463 84,998
50,028 62,650
36,515 27,829
1,123,786 1,118,740

ENEZRAEY SR E ABEECORA

B.HMENRERETEH

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®B T ARBF T
16,585 15,915
115,015 75,319
3,579 11,898
99,864 31,287
356,413 74,977
203,102 169,156
35,151 31,282
1,242,136 1,290,892
19,630 18,498

- 14,795

- 1,000

1,834 11,665

- 108

115,213 80,913
2,208,522 1,827,705

batEp T EERAL RS -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts RHEH

35. LONG-TERM PAYABLES

Long-term portion of accrued
rental expenses 2B

Put options to non-controlling
shareholders

Note:

FEHE AR A% SR A9 7R
oy B 420

Put options were granted to certain non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary to sell their equity
interests in the subsidiary to the Group at a
pre-determined price in connection with the acquisition
of the subsidiary in November 2009. The put options
are exercisable from 1 January 2010 and have no
expiry date. Holders of the put options need to notify
the Group of the exercise of the options in written
form before November of a calendar year and the
Group has to complete the required transaction and
pay the non-controlling shareholders before 1 May of
the year subsequent to the year in which the notice of
the exercise of put options is received. The balance
represents the present value of amounts payable by
the Group to acquire the non-controlling interests as
if the non-controlling interests were fully acquired at
each of the reporting dates. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group has repurchased all the non-controlling
interests of the subsidiary with put options granted.

EEtHER RS

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12 A31HIEFE

4. fTEE€MIT A
2015 2014
—E-IF —F-0mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
- 389

35. REFER FIE
2015 2014
= —T-lF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARETIT
73,370 43,784
- 271,111
73,370 314,895
Bt

B2009F 11 A —MWBARIME -
ERZMBARE TIEEBRBRERE TR
HEE BRSUIRECEREASEE
B E AR o 3R0h B RER20105F1 A
BRI T - WEF|HA - oL R
BABRBEBEFE11AZAIAEEBAAR
SETFERGEHESE  AEBAAR

R ER A RN FEERF5H1
H 2 BISEAKFT 75 A2 5 & A 3R 4% A% A% B 1+
o BEHRIERNEERBIFERERNE
Hml EREE LRSS ESRES B8
WEEFT B % EIE R © PR2015%F12
A318 AEBEEBEMER THHE
A B FEIE ARG HAAE -
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

On 31 December 2011, the Company acquired
a 50% ownership interest of Zhenjiang Baisheng
Commercial Center Co., Ltd. (“Zhenjiang
Baisheng”). The percentages of voting rights and
profit sharing of this joint venture are the same
as the percentage of the ownership interest.

On 22 January 2015, the Company entered
into an agreement with Jiangsu Hengshun
Vinegar-Industry Co., Ltd. (L& IEIBES 2D
ABR/AT]) to acquire the rest of 50% interest
of Zhengjiang Baisheng at a consideration of
RMB176,300,000. Thus the Group acquired a
100% interest in Zhenjiang Baisheng.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of Zhenjiang Baisheng as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets BT IBE E
Inventories FE

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

e & B3 IA

Long-term payables REBET FIB
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBRE

Total identifiable net assets
at fair value

Goodwill on acquisition W iE 2 =

Gains on bargain purchase

B RIRITHER

36. bESHt

(@)

H e SRR ERE R

THAFAEZAFE

recognised in other income and W 2 R 8 OF BE W 2
gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Transfer from investment in HELELFIREEA
a joint venture

Satisfied by cash e

R2011F12A318H » N A = Y B
THEIAREHERAR([EIR
B1)S0%M B RE#EZ - HeEh
ERRFEMEE R AT DL
FreE#Ezr » AR -

R2015%1 A22H » & Q 7] BT &
BIEEE R DB R D A EMNKAE
B A R #176,300,0007T Y B& &2 T
50% 2 M sk o E it - A& B
BT T A R100%K) ER -

HITEENARREEMBENR
FEREEBZERNTENT :

Fair value

recognised on acquisition
W R A E

RMB’ 000

ARETF T

471,967
4,297
1,924

FBNFIR - RE R HE B WGRIR

3,313
7,801

(16,053)

(117,272)

(19,318)

(78,350)

258,309

122,946

BERAESREREREMB AR

204,860
176,300



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(CONTINUED)

The Group incurred transaction costs of
RMB1,589,000 for this acquisition. These
transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

36. ¥ & O (&)

AEBEBREAKBEZEARK
1,589,0007C R BKA » BLELZ FHK
REEBEEWRENGE RERSP
FEfh A SZ A o

HWE-ENBARNRE RSN
LN

RMB’ 000
AR®BT T
Cash consideration BERE (176,300)
Prepayment for acquisition of a TR UR B M B & Rl 3B
subsidiary 20,000
Cash and bank balances acquired Wi 2B & RIBTTHEH 7,801
Net outflow of cash and cash RI&EEEIR FHRE &
equivalents included in cash ReFEMRFR L FE
flows from investing activities (148,499)
Transaction costs of the acquisition REEEHMEHEESRER
included in cash flows from BN P DN
operating activities (1,589
(150,088)

Since the acquisition, Zhenjiang Baisheng
contributed RMB4,865,000 to the Group’s
turnover and loss of RMB52,830,000 to the
consolidated profit during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue from
continuing operations of the Group and
the profit of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015 would have been
RMB4,171,272,000 and RMB488,288,000
respectively.

B EER - B Z2015F12A318 1t
FE CBIBRAAKEETRAR
#4,865,000 T KA BB R A R HE
52,830,000 C4R & i Al 518 ©

WA HER2015FFIETT  HE
201512 AG1HILEFE @ HEKE
BAREBEBERHKRA KGNS B A
AR B4171,272,0007T & A R #E
488,288,0007T °
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

On 1 July 2015, Springland International Group
Company Limited entered into an agreement
with Octopus (Singapore) Holdings Limited to
acquire 100% interest of Octopus (Singapore)
PTE Limited at a consideration of SGD1.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited as

36. ¥ & O (&)

(b)

2016F7A1H r EHEKEEE
AR A 7 EOctopus (Singapore)
Holdings Limited3 A LA $3 {2137 40
# 7T U B Octopus (Singapore) PTE
Limited 100%% %= #9175 3% °

Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited
WAIFREENMEEN R FEREK

at the date of acquisition were as follows: BRHERNAEDT :
Fair value
recognised on acquisition
WERERNATE
SGD’ 000
Frong T o
Property, plant and equipment LE I e ] 225

Prepayments, deposits and TERRIA ~ Ze RH M EWFRIE

other receivables 109
Cash and bank balances R MIRITHEEH 249
Trade payables JE B 58 (27)
Other payables and accruals Hap et mm R ERT &R (556)

Total identifiable net assets

ABAFEEZ AFE

at fair value

Satisfied by cash Re I
The Group incurred no other transaction costs
for this acquisition.

Since the acquisition, Octopus (Singapore) PTE
Limited contributed loss of RMB1,148,000 to
the consolidated profit during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the
beginning of the year, the profit of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been RMB486,067,000.

AEEEHBERBEMIFHHA -

BUER B ZE2015F12A31
H IE % £ - Octopus (Singapore)
PTE Limited& 2N & B %5 2k A R #&
1,148,000 T K 4r & ' Tl &5 18 o

fia HFER2015F FHI#ETT  HE
201512 318 It FE AR EER
B AR #486,067,0007T °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES,

7. JAREE  CEHEZHKE

OPERATING LEASE N A HE

ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL

COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease arrangements (a) KREHRELH
Group as lessee ANEEFEBATAA

The Group leases certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth years, F - EZEFRHF(BEEEMF)
inclusive

After five years AFMNE

AEBEKELEHERHEERT
Tk HHA—E=_TF-

MR2015%12 8318 » KREEREF
ATRGEE L REN A RREENE
ST ¢

2015 2014
—g-HF -"T-@EF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

89,408 95,743
411,283 398,120
1,064,781 1,021,315
1,565,472 1,615,178
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

37.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, 37.FREE  KLEHETHRE
OPERATING LEASE RAE (1E)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Operating lease arrangements (continued) (a) BREHEZH (H])
Group as lessor KEFE 7 H A
The Group leases out certain of its land and AEBREBESEHELHEEET
buildings under operating lease arrangements T REF HEBA—E=E_FF-
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total M2015F12A31H » AEERET
future minimum lease receivables under A UE AL 2 R B A R R &K FE U R
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants SREIE -

falling due as follows:

2015 2014
—g-HF -"T-@EF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

Within one year —F R 143,203 121,154

In the second to fifth years, HF - EZEFRHF(BHEEEMF)
inclusive 263,275 132,421
After five years AELE 169,752 51,796
576,230 305,371

(b) Capital commitments (b) EAEIE

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mOF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETTT

Contracted, but not BB RBEE
provided for:
Property, plant and Y BB KRB
equipment 685,453 1,313,603




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER

RESERVES

(a) Issued capital

Issued and fully paid
2,421,050,000

(2014: 2,460,700,000)

ordinary shares

ERTRAR
2,421,050,000

(20144 : 2,460,700,000)

A summary of the movements of the Company’s

issued capital is as follows:

At 1 January 2014

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

At 31 December 2014,
and 1 January 2015

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

Cancellation of treasury
shares

At 31 December 2015

201441 A1 H

A 3R P [0 70 3 8

M2014%F12A31H &

201551 H1H

P 3% B8 [0 A0 &E 85

A HETT

72015912 A31H

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

38.ERITHRAK B

(a) BEEITRA

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBT T AR¥BFIT
20,907 21,249

AARERTRANEDHESHT -

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each
Thousands
BREE
0.01/8 THY
g2 RMB’ 000
T B ARBTT

2,497,896 21,572
(37,196) (323)
2,460,700 21,249
(27,730) (240)
(11,920) (102)
2,421,050 20,907

-—
~
-—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Issued capital (Continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

38. S MITIRAK & (&)

(a) BERTRAE (&)

RAREE  NRRBE B FAERE
ARRMDEAT

No. of shares at Price per share Aggregate

HK$0.01 each BRRE Aggregate consideration

Thousands Highest Lowest consideration equivalent to

SREE B& 5337 BRE HERERE

Month of repurchase 0.01& L HK$ HK$ HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000

B A4 RO BE BT BT TET ARETRT
TR

January 2015 2015 1A 8,780 2.75 2.61 23,753 18,803

July 2015 20155 7H 1,120 2.38 2.25 2,565 2,024

August 2015 2015 8H 1,023 2.12 2.02 2,111 1,741

September 2015 2015%9H 7,447 2.10 1.99 15,267 12,529

October 2015 2015%10A 4,950 2.09 1.92 9,985 8,182

November 2015 2015114 2,390 1.93 1.82 4,479 3,696

December 2015 201512 2,020 1.80 1.67 3,494 2,927

27,730 61,654 49,902

The Company repurchased and cancelled
27,730,000 shares during the year ended
31 December 2015. The nominal value of
approximately HK$277,000, equivalent to
RMB240,000 (2014: HK$491,000, equivalent
to RMB425,000) was credited to issued
capital account, and the premium paid
or payable and the related costs incurred
for the share repurchase of approximately
HK$61,377,000, equivalent to RMB49,662,000
(2014: HK$147,451,000, equivalent to
RMB116,722,000) was charged against the
share premium account of the Company.

H E2015F12A31H EFE - K
A 7§ B 7 $527,730,0008% A%
F - RAEEL B277,000% 7T -
HERARE240,0005T (2014
% : 491,000 7L - HER AR
425,0007T) B AT A B BT AR
F-BELERKRGE M KENDNS
& M 187 & B #961,377,0007 7T -
HE R AR #49,662,0007T (2014
& 1 147,451,000 7T * HERAR
#5116,722,0007T) B 5t AR Q& B
DBERE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Issued capital (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, 11,920,000 shares
were repurchased but not cancelled and still
recognised as treasury shares, the nominal value
was approximately HK$119,000, equivalent to
RMB102,000, and the premium paid and the
related costs incurred for the share repurchased
of approximately HK$31,078,000, equivalent to
RMB24,481,000. These shares were cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
was credited to issued capital account from
treasury share accounts.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between (i) the Company’s cost of investments
in the subsidiaries that were acquired via a
business combination under common control
in the prior year and (i) the aggregate of the
nominal values of the paid-up capital of these
subsidiaries upon acquisition.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, each of the PRC
Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until this reserve reaches 50% of its
registered capital.

The SSR is non-distributable except in the
event of a liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as paid-up capital.
However, the balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after these usages.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

38. S MITIRAK & (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BRETRA (&)
R2014F12A31H > BIEERE
fF#911,920,0008% # 7 5= 88 ¢ 13
WHERAEEGR HEHBRAEED
119,000 ¢ lHE R AR
102,0007T - i gt & B i (7 2~ &Y
= B K iH B8 & A 4931,078,0007%
JC c HHE R A R #24,481,0007T °
HE20156F12A31 B ILFE » AR
MIEH  WRREGFREPFT AR
RNABBITIRARE -

BEQRs
EBBREOARRER A BEAMHE
Z BB R 2 I R 15 A o B R
B I8 2 ] O 4R B AR S B (i) i B By %
EHE AR E AR A EE AR
EH o

EEAES
REBFERFDERTEMNBRER
BEMABER  PENBARAR
HER D& 08 F #910% (RBEH B
REFEUNEE) DEEEELTE
e (DEERAEE])  BERF LR
TENHEEAEMEARRS50% °

EERBEHRRBRERIITA D
& HEEETE P BARAE R
ETRETAANEERFTERRL
BEXREREGER - BERHERE
BE ZEAERBEEBARRER
D REEME A E25% °

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER 3.CBITRARHE (&)

-
~
H
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RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(d) Discretionary reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, certain of the PRC
Subsidiaries transferred a certain percentage
of their profit after tax, at the discretion of the
PRC Subsidiaries’ boards of directors, to the
discretionary reserve. The discretionary reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital.

39. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES

At the acquisition date of Yangzhou Fengxiang in the
year 2012, the Group decided to dispose of certain
non-current assets and a subsidiary acquired from
that business combination, which are not relevant
to the principal operation of the Group. According
to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, the Group classified these
non-current assets and the subsidiary as held for sale
at the acquisition date and measured them at fair
value less costs to sell.

As the Group did not change the intention of selling
the rest of the subsidiary, and it was still classified as
held for sale. As at 31 December 2015, the disposal
of the rest of the held for sale subsidiary was still in
progress.

(d) BB
R ERFDER D EK B R ES
EMAERER  ETHEMNEBERA
ERERBREMNOREB D (B
EXeMEET) ERBERHE - BB
AT AN EEBEFRENEER
IEINFEME A -

V.CRIEREXBTERLEES

EEEREEABRE

R2012F W BHMER 2 B K&
BRAERER THRAREBAHTER
B BAREFEXGEEN FRD
BEN—ZFTRA - KEBRTBHRS
HRNESSFF B 1 EHRBEER B
BERT  ANEERZERRDEER
MEBARREBRIADABIEREEE

YRR FEEREEXNATE -

AEEBWEERELHERT TRAANE
PN EREAREGFERE -
MR2015F12831H B T IFBHEFEWE
RNAINREREENIEETH °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

(i)

On 15 April 2013, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Jiangsu
Springland International Holding (Group)
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Springland”) purchased
a financial product (the “Financial
Product”) from China Construction Bank
Corporation Wuxi Chengbei Branch
for RMB200,000,000 maturing on 17
April 2014. However, a balance of
RMB180,000,000 remained outstanding
under the Financial Product after the
maturity on 17 April 2014. In the course of
enquiries with the bank, it was discovered
that a pledge had been registered on a
one year fixed deposit of RMB100,000,000
with China Construction Bank Corporation
Wuxi Yingbin Branch, which is placed in
January 2014, by an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Wuxi Xishan
Yaohan Lifestyle Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan
Yaohan”), with an interest rate equal to
3.25% per annum (the “Deposit”), payable
upon maturity.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

40.BBEFXRS
BRABMERE LM SHRENR SN
@ AEBAFRBESSNTEA
25

(a) HEEFTNRS

(i) F2013F4815H » )T &k E b
BB IER EE AR A A ([IE
ZEi]) ARAAIHEZEEEHE
NA MAPEREERRTRNDAE
RATESBILTTEEAR
MoETmEBEMER (B E
1) - W R201454 8178 &
H - AfmerE A ARE1.8ET
I8 Bf = 201454 A17H 3|
g ARKE - FERRITHE
MBIEFR - AEEIRES G
NERHEFESBR AR ([
WNAERD  AaaEEs
BHBRR E2014F18 7
WA B ZRIBITRODERA
AIEBNE T2 ARBIE
I+ F U EE R BB.25%H — F
HEBER(EHER]) BEL
W o

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Transactions with related parties
(continued)

On 30 April 2014, to prevent possible
losses and incurrence of further time and
costs by the Group, Jiangsu Springland
and Xishan Yaohan as sellers entered into
an agreement with Mr. Chen Jiangiang (the
“Controlling Shareholder”) as purchaser,
whereby Jiangsu Springland agreed
to dispose of the Financial Product to
the Controlling Shareholder for a cash
consideration equal to RMB180,000,000
and Xishan Yaohan agreed to dispose of
the Deposit to the Controlling Shareholder
for a cash consideration equal to
RMB100,000,000. The considerations were
determined after considering the costs paid
by Jiangsu Springland for the Financial
Product and Xishan Yaohan for the Deposit,
respectively. The considerations shall be
paid by the Controlling Shareholder on/
before 31 December 2014.

In the year of 2014, RMB98,000,000
of the considerations was paid by the
Controlling Shareholder. The outstanding
considerations due from the Controlling
Shareholder was RMB182,000,000 as
at 31 December 2015 and 2014. On 16
December 2014, Jiangsu Springland,
Xishan Yaohan and the Controlling
Shareholder entered into a supplemental
agreement whereby the outstanding
consideration became interest bearing at
a rate of 3.5% per annual from 1 January
2015 and the payment date was extended
to 31 December 2016. Up to 31 December
2015, the interest generated from the
receivables amounted to RMB6,370,000.
The Controlling Shareholder had paid the
interest before 31 December 2015.

On 1 July 2015, the Group acquired a
subsidiary, Octopus (Singapore) PTE
Limited, from a subsidiary of the company’s
ultimate holding at a consideration of
SGD1. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 36 to the financial
statements.

40.BELXRZ (&)

(a)

HRBRELNXS (&)

(ii

R2014F4 308 @ At e K
EEAEELATEMBLEMER
ELXEFEZHEEMEBR T
E R I\ EEIEAE H HE
PRiESR 4 ([1ERRIR R ]) 1B A
BRI THMEMRE
MERR AR AR & ¥ E AR
1.8f8 T EEMER LB LN
AR B R AR IR DAR & ¥
BIETHEEHRFNR  HE
TENIERE AE SR E
X85 1L BT U BB TE X
FIZ S AEEE - BEMH
7 A IR R 2014412 A31H
2B o

R2014F[F - IERBRE X
# B A R #98,000,0007T * B
2015% 12 A31H &2014412
AB18 - {8 # &8 e WE IR AR
R A AR #182,000,0007T °
MR2014F12A16H » /T & &
H - #8510 NG BRI AR R ET
ST - HEAARB2015
F1A1A BT ZNFTFFE3.5%
B RATF A HERE20164F
12A31H - 2015412 31
B ZERWKIBELEFNSE
A R #6,370,0007T ° 2 i% A%
R B R2015F12 A31H Z A
ST EZAE -

2015F7A1H » AEB Y
BAFTME TR AR R &K
TRARIWET —HREA
A]Octopus (Singapore) PTE
Limited ° # — 25 5F 1570 B 7% ¥
=T 36 & -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Due from the Controlling  J& U 22 A% B% B8 R0 1B
Shareholder
Loan to a joint venture RETFTEELENER

Amount due to

R B 2 AR

an associate

(ii)

The Group had an outstanding balance
due from the Controlling Shareholder of
RMB182,000,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB182,000,000). This balance is
unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 3.5%
from 1 January 2015 and shall be repaid on/
before 31 December 2016.

As disclosed above, the Group had an
outstanding balance of a loan to a joint
venture of RMB30,000,000 as at 31
December 2014. This balance is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. In the year of 2015, the Group
has acquired the joint venture.

Included in the other payables and accruals,
the Group had an outstanding balance due
to an associate of RMB14,795,000 as at 31
December 2014. This balance is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. In the year of 2015, the Group
has acquired the associate, and there was
no such balance as at 31 December 2015.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

40.BBEFRF (&)

(b)

(1)

(i)

(i)

EREES WA

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
20155 20144
12A831H 12H31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR AREF T
182,000 182,000

- 30,000

- (14,795)

(i

(i)

NEEPR2015F12 A31 H
FERZERBRERBEAEARK
182,000,0007T (20144 : AR
#182,000,0007T) ° it ¢4%8
TyEiEH - 520151 1B
LA F&3.5%51 & - FRIBEE
201612 A31 Hel 2 & -

IRiE E I FE 0 REBER2014
F12A31TEBREFETEEBED
B sE 8 A AR 30,000,000
JC o Ll BRER LR - 8
N [E) TE 2 BUAR IR o 1R20154F
B ANEERETZAERE -

A& ER2014F12 8318 8
SHEEMENFEREGTER
FREMEEATREAAR
#14,795,0007T » L it 8258 Ty
EEA - 2B BEETERS
R o RR2015F 5 « AEE U
T ¥ E AT - 201512 A
31B WA ERERER o

-—
~
~
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Short-term employee benefits & 2 {E S % FAl
Post-employment benefits BRE

Total compensation paid TG EEERAS
to key management O % B 48 58
personnel

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 11
to the financial statements.

40.BELXRZ (&)

(c) AEEFTEREBAEBNTHMH

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

8,160 7,828
274 244
8,434 8,072

AEBEZERITRERFH M E—
FREBRMBRRMFTIHE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
31 December 2015

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments
Trade receivables
Due from the Controlling
Shareholder
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Restricted cash
Long-term time deposits at banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accruals
Short-term financing notes

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

41.

BER

e
&
]

kY 72

&

| 75 B

HEH

&

10

AR

2015%12H31H

El T

R BRE®T

i=}

AEmRmE

SRMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets
EXk AfHE Total
EkzE CREE o
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tx AR¥Tx
AHEHERE - 110 110
Y E 5308 9,781 - 9,781
M B BB R SR 0E
182,000 - 182,000
STABMNFE - %
N H o B WA
HemMEE 204,583 - 204,583
XREEES 237,597 - 237,597
FRBEOTHRBTHER 170,141 - 170,141
Be kB EEN 629,061 - 629,061
1,433,163 110 1,433,273
SERAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R A
sHEH Total
cHas et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥E T AR T
ERESHERENEE 1,123,786 1,123,786
AT AEL RS RE R
BEtEAMNTcRAE 624,690 624,690
RHRmE S 506,747 506,747
FTEIRITE R 2,468,865 2,468,865
4,724,088 4,724,088

-—
~
©
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31HILEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
31 December 2014

M EZERETHERT A (&)

2014512 A31H

Financial assets EtMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss - Held Available-
for trading for-sale
/N Loans and financial
ARG receivables assets
HemEE— Rk EmE Total
BERS FEYFRIE SHEE Bt
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT AREBTT AREFTT ARETR
Available-for-sale investments AHHERSE - - 110 110
Trade receivables B E 5508 - 12,164 = 12,164
Due from the Controlling JE Wi B AR B S IE
Shareholder = 182,000 = 182,000
Financial assets included in FABMNE - BE
prepayments, deposits R H b JE W58
and other receivables HemMEE - 173,359 = 173,359
Structured deposits EEUEGTR - 115,000 - 115,000
Restricted cash XREKES = 227,580 = 227,580
Long-term time deposits at banks  F R 17 HREE HER = 162,304 = 162,304
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTA 389 - - 389
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY = 1,822,664 = 1,822,664
389 2,695,071 110 2,695,570
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R K AN ETHE Total
MNEREE et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
Trade and bills payables ETE 55 IB R IEMNZEE 1,118,740 1,118,740
Financial liabilities included in other &t A E fth FE < 738 %
payables and accruals EirERANeREE 293,190 293,190
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t /B R 1T71E & 2,594,219 2,594,219
Financial liabilities included in AT ARBENRIERN
long-term payables TRBE 271,111 271,111
4,277,260 4,277,260




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
structured deposits, available-for-sale investments,
trade receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals and loans to subsidiaries
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of short-term financing notes and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities, which are also approximate to their
carrying amounts. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2015 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with a licensed bank. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts, are measured
using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations.
The models incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts are the same as their fair values.
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
There were no assets measured at fair value as at 31
December 2015.

As at 31 December 2014:

Quoted prices
in active
markets

BT
HRE
(Level 1)
(B—#)
RMB’000
ARETT

EMTANQAFERAFES
SESAC Y

AT EERRS
AT EBIIRAEESRTANHATE
TR

B FEFENEE
M2015F12A31H * AEBWEIZAF
EEEHARE -
R2014F12H31H -
Fair value measurement using
NEEFETNRA

Significant Significant
observable  unobservable

inputs inputs

ERA ERAT

BRBAE BEBAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B=H) (B=#) X

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE

Derivative financial instruments fTEERTA -

389 = 389

There were no liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2014: Nil).

MN2015%12A31H » KEE W EIZAF
B =M EE (2014F  £&) -

FR TESsHEENEHEEEAT
ENETEF—RRFE-_H2EHBR
TR A S HE =R (20144 : &) o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans, short-term
financing notes and cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally interest rate swaps and forward
currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE
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3. HHEREEEBREREE

AEENETZSRIA  BRITERI
BRFTENR EHREs HEHE
HER ZEeRIANTIZEAEER
rEEEELEE - AKBEHERE
Httm e BERELANEREERE
& WEKREZREMENE SR -

AEEEETTHAERR S EEBEF
EEHMERNERSH - ANRATE
8 EE S R B A R A R A
2 L -

AEEeRMTAEEANTERRENX
Bk SNERR  EERBRERSE S
Bk EFEFHNYREEE LASE
RERHERR  ESAmT  AEEER
TR BERN M IS IMA N 2.4

Ego
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank loans with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

Year ended 31 December 2015 # £2015F12H31HLLFE

us$ Ev
HK$ BT
Us$ =TT
HK$ BT

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE2014F12A31H ILFE

us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Us$ ETT
HK$ BT

BHRREERFRRBE (&)

FIEER
AEBFEAZNTBHEEDEAREE
s BT B R B NRTERA
go

o

R AR BB ADE N (B R EF
EROFE)NSEFRES (EME

~
B
Hits #HERFTEOBERT) HGURRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

basis points before tax
E2iEm . BRBAEF
CRi2) %, CR2)

RMB’ 000

AR T
50 (5,662)
50 (1,880)
(50) 5,662
(50) 1,880
50 (10,115)
50 27)
(50) 10,115
(50) 27



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and all transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities were
denominated in RMB, except for certain bank
balances denominated in US$ and HK$ as disclosed
in note 29 and bank loans denominated in US$ and
HK$ as disclosed in note 31.

Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances, time
deposits and bank loans are denominated in US$ or
HK$ which expose the Group to foreign currency risk
attributable to the fluctuations in the exchange rates
of US$/HK$ against RMB, the functional currency of
the respective group entities.

The management monitors foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 3% (2014: 3%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies 3% (2014:
3%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 3% (2014: 3%) change in
foreign currency rates.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
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43. I EREEEERBE (F)

S L B
AEBOFEHERNTFEAEBMER
SUEMARKE o BRIK 295 # 1
B TRITERIAZ T RETTAHE KM &
BT BERITERNE T RE T E
Sh e REBAZHEERBBEAARE
FHE e

AEEETRITEHRERS - |RITEK
TyAET,/ B E MASEHEEZX
B TRARE GHREEERNE
B 2HHERKE - AR IMNERR -

EREEERINERR  YRAFTERE
BEHERINE AR -

TRFFMAEREARE S IEHEINEE
R FHE N 87 [E3% (20144 : 3%) KBRS
E-RXETEABNI2HRINER
IR BT {58 A ) SR E LE R 3% (2014 4F -
3%) + REREEE L HINEE R n] g &
& BT - BRE DT EBREUAIIE
FTEMAEEERIED WA RS HME
4R 323% (20144 : 3%) HNEFE R &
BAEERE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BHRREERFRRBE (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEEE B (48)
US$ Impact HK$ Impact
EY-2 Brwg
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-Rf —T-NF —F-EFf —T-MOF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT
Increase/(decrease) in profit Bt gT A E AV AN,
before tax: CR) :
if RMB weakens against BARBEEINET K
foreign currency (15,964) (35,932) (14,421) (15,156)
if RMB strengthens against HEAREHINE EIR
foreign currency 15,964 35,932 14,421 15,156

The sensitivity analysis above only analysed the
Group’s year end inherent foreign exchange risk
exposure and does not represent the exposure during
the year as the value of the monetary items and the
exchange rates fluctuate during the year.

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and structured
deposits are mainly deposits with state-owned banks
in Mainland China. The credit risk of the Group’s
financial assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits, trade receivables
and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

HRFAEEEBEEREXKE  HL
BHEFRESITESAEEFRNES I
EE fl B o3 AT > 7 3 TS BE S R & AF LB o

FERR
AEBYEREERBESTER - AKHE
MR LR EBYNEBEETREE
REBRRFEAMLEBEERITHFR
AEEREBRERE MRS FEYNE
BHETER - BWE 5508 A K& E Rk
REEANEREENEREERS T
BHFAZNRSEERR -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans. Pursuant to the credit facility
intention letters provided by certain banks, the
banks had agreed to provide additional loans up to
RMB3,270,000,000, subject to available facilities,
upon the Group’s request.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

43.

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31HILEFE

BHRREERFRRBE (&)

RBEERAR
AEENABERASHE TAZNES
RROER ZTAEZREEMIAR
TREE(WRKESFIR) NI HAE &
RERKERBNEFRERE

AREBHBEZEEAFRITER AR
BESEBEUENBEETEREN -
BEAEBER  BERETRITH
BREEE RTEREREARE
3,270,000,000TTH EFREE °

REARERK  AREHLREET
8 (A R TRA KT E) BRI T %
B -

3to12 1to5 Over 5
2015 Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months =z -z fif:3 Total
20155 REX®R =fEAR +=f8A ik:d HE 8
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR®TR ARE®TR AR%TR AR%ETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it BFTE - 18,695 1,651,566 898,036 - 2,568,297
Short-term financing notes RHRES - - 519,250 - - 519,250
Trade and bills payables ENESTER
ENER 178,006 945,780 - - - 1,123,786
Financial liabilities included in SAEMERFER
other payables and accruals B ERRMERAR 624,690 - - - - 624,690
802,696 964,475 2,170,816 898,036 - 4,836,023

BB siEhYE T I LINMT SONIATOH TYNOILYNYILINI ANV IONIHAS

—_—
=)
~

f% 4y G102 1HOd3AH TVNNNY



—_
[=d
[=2]

7 B s s Q3 LN SONIATOH TIVNOILYNEILNI ANV IONIAAS

=}

[

f% 45 G102 1HOd3d TVNNNY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR R E U

Year ended 31 December 2015
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes short-term financing notes, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, trade and bills payables
and other payables and accruals, less structured
deposits, restricted cash, long-term time deposits
at banks and cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. MR EE B ERBUR (8)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESERK (&)
31012 1105 Over 5
2014 Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months == - nE Total
20145 REXKE =AAR  +=fA i3 AL Gk
RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i BT E - 136,218 234979 2,398,364 - 2,769,561
Trade and bils payables ERESTER
ERZEE 230,549 873,561 14,630 - - 1,118,740
Financial liabilities included in AR MM TIER
other payables and accruals EERNeRAR 277,804 = = = - 277,804
Financial liabilties included in STARBEMNFE
long-term payables MemasE - - - 71 - 271
508353 1,009,779 249,609 2,669,475 - 4,437,216
Capital management B

AEBEAERNEIEZBARR/RER
SEREFELE  WHBRRENERL
K DAXFHEXBERI BBRRERK
RHzs -

AEEREBEERIONESHMERH
BEAGETEHAR - BHFHARE
BAREE AEEXZABRIMAFTRR
IR MREREREEARNKEITHRK -
N5 B 1 78 38 ST (X {RT SN EB e 0 B B AN AR
E o B E2015912 8318 N2014F12
AB1BLEFE - BAEEBE K=K
BRIWELE o

AEBENEERBLRERER  MAE
2= B &t X AME 5% BERR LA B A NE 7
FRE-BEBFRERENRES R
RITER  BNEIRERENRE -
HtENRBEREFTERRGERE LT
K RREBE: FRE|TORHE
HEAEReNEEEEY BB
REFEAANEGEED -  ARBHEER
HEERBLLREFESENKE - RE
SHREERBLEET



43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

44,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

Short-term financing notes
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Less: Structured deposits
Restricted cash
Long-term time deposits
at banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

Equity and net debt

Gearing ratio

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

(@)

(o)

On 3 February 2016, the Company wrote off the
subsidiary company Wuxi Yuandongli Consulting
Co., Ltd.

On 16 February 2016, the Company entered
into an agreement with the non-controlling
shareholder to acquire 20% non-controlling
interest of Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Investment
Management Co., Ltd. at a consideration of
RMB100,000.

On February 2016, the Group obtained approval
from the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors to issue medium-term
financing notes in one tranche or more than one
tranche with an aggregate principal amount of
up to RMB2.0 billion with a term of 3 years from
the date of issuance to domestic institutional
investors in the PRC.

(@)

B 75 ¥ 2= BT RE

Year ended 31 December 2015
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43. I EREEEERBE (F)

BEARER (HE)
2015 2014
—E—FEF —ZE—JOFE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
HHmES 506,747 =
FTBIRTTER 2,468,865 2,594,219
JENESHBERENEE 1,123,786 1,118,740
HEapEtmE Rk ETE R 2,208,522 1,827,705
B AT R - (115,000)
XREBES (237,597) (227,580)
EFERIRITHRE

EHFER (170,141) (162,304)
RekReEEY (629,061) (1,822,664)
B F 5 5,271,121 3,213,116

SARHEE AEGRERE
5,027,818 4,984,406
EmREKFRE 10,298,939 8,197,522
BEEABLEX 51% 39%

4. HEHREE

R20165F2 7 - A& B EE & B R
THEMERZEBeIERT—H
—H E RS BRI BB AR
2018 T » W AR 37T B H#E s A HAS
?Wﬁﬁ%%%t&ﬂ Bl A ERE
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

45, KN T BF 3 AROR &
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Information about the statement of financial position RIMBEER - AR T ERR == 8140
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is T
as follows:
2015 2014
=F-1% —F—HmF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AL ENGI 980,918 1,028,123
Total non-current assets JEMENE EBTE 980,918 1,028,123
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Dividends receivables ilegiids) 1,287 =
Prepayments, deposits JERFIE e R
and other receivables E b & Y FRIB 241 228
Cash and cash equivalents HEMRBEEEY 6,256 29,443
Total current assets MENBEBRE 7,784 29,671
Net assets FEE 988,702 1,057,794
EQUITY ER
Issued capital BETRA 20,907 21,249
Treasury shares ETF % - (102)
Reserves i 967,795 1,036,647
Total equity 7 7 HA R 988,702 1,057,794

Chen Jiangiang

Tao Qingrong

P 32 28 BB &
Director Director
EZE EZE
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

46.

(CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2014

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Final 2013 dividend declared

Interim 2014 dividend

Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

At 31 December 2014 and
1 January 2015
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Final 2014 dividend declared
Interim 2015 dividend
Repurchase and cancellation
of shares

At 31 December 2015

45, KN B B I AR 3= (&)

Hat

RRABOFEERDNT -

Exchange
Share fluctuation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BE=x
R 135 E BB EE 28 wxE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETIT ARBFTT ARETT ARETT
M2014%F1 A1 R 1,611,292 (281,316) (25,107) 1,304,869
FELHKBEERE
- 7,446 (3,021) 4,425
B E#2013F REI IR & 349 - - 349
20145 HifR B (156,274) = = (156,274)
(116,722) - - (116,722)
MR2014F12A318 &
20151 A1H 1,338,645 (273,870) (28,128) 1,036,647
FEE2EWEERTE
- 58,622 176,967 235,589
B E #i2014F RS (174,244) - - (174,244)
2015F F HiAR B (80,535) - - (80,535)
% 22 B8 [B] K % 84
(49,662) - - (49,662)
1,034,204 (215,248) 148,839 967,795
46. Bf 1§ R R AV HL B

APPROVAL OF THESE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 March 2016.

ZMERERA2016F3F16EKEES

it /e 0 IR A T A o
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

EFERBERE

FINANCIAL RESULTS MK EE

TSP (Note 1) HEMBHIBRE (Hi21)

Revenue WA

Profit from operation mERF

Profit for the year FERH

Profit attributable to SAREA ARG
owners of the parent ikl

Earnings per share BRAEARES
attributable to ordinary BEAEGER

equity holders of the
parent (RMB cents)

wH(ARED)

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL Bi Bk R&EE

POSITION
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets REEE
Total assets BEE
Current liabilities MEERE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Total liabilities BERE
Net assets BESE
Note:

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F-—% ZF--f ZF-=f CZT-QPF <-E-EF

RMB million

(NR®EETT)
8,697 9,859 11,135 11,049 10,696
3,602 3,807 4,162 4,276 4,168
848 948 1,026 983 788
592 656 737 646 490
581 651 730 634 480
23 26 29 26 20

As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——f Z—T-—-fF -—T-=% —T-NFE CZEBE-RfF

RMB million

(AREBETL)
5,908 7,515 8,235 9,065 10,662
2,845 2,867 3,897 2,537 1,580
8,753 10,382 12,132 11,602 12,242
3,117 4,253 5,344 3,330 5,513
1,476 1,418 1,762 3,075 1,511
4,593 5,671 7,106 6,405 7,024
4,160 4,711 5,026 5,197 5,218

Kiaz:

(1) TSP represents the sum of gross revenue from
concessionaire sales, revenue from direct sales and rental

income.

(1) HEMSHARAREREFELHEMN
BREEE  BEERHEERARBESKA -
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